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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT
Ta the Members of SRL Limited

Report on the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of SRL Limited (hereinafter referred to as the
‘Holding Company™) and its subsidiaries (Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to
as “the Group™) and its joint ventures, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March
2021, the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income).
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended. and notes to the consolidated financial statements. including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated
financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and based
on the consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements of such subsidiary, and
Joint ventures as were audited by the other auditors, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give
the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (*Act™) in the manner so required and give a true
and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally aceepted in India, of the consolidated
state of affairs of the Group and joint ventures as at 31 March 2021. of its consolidated profit. other
comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows for the vear then
ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group and its joint ventures in accordance with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in terms of the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the relevant provisions of the Act, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit
evidence obtained by us along with the consideration of audit reports of the other auditors referred to in
sub paragraph (a) of the “Other Matters” paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 54 and 55 of the conseolidated financial statements which deals with various
matters including the ongoing investigation by Serious Fraud Investigation Office (“SF1O0™) on Fortis
Healtheare Limited (“*FHL™ or the “Parent Company™) and its subsidiaries (the “Fortis Group™) regarding
alleged improper transactions and non-compliances with laws and regulations including Companies Act,
2013 and SEBI laws and regulations. These transactions and non-compliances relate to or originated prior
to take over of control of parent Company by its reconstituted board of directors in the year ended 31
March 2018. As mentioned in the note, the Fortis Group has been submitting information required by
SFIO and is also cooperating in the regulatory investigations.
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As explained in the said note, the Fortis Group had recorded significant adjustments/ provisions in its
books of account during the year ended 31 March 2018. The Parent Company has launched legal
proceedings and has also filed a complaint with the Economic Offences Wing (‘EOW") against erstwhile
promoters and their related entities based on the findings of the investigation conducted by the Fortis
Group. Based on management’s detailed analysis and consultation with external legal counsel, any further
financial impact, to the extent it can be reliably estimated as at present, is not expected to be material.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

As explained in Note 56 of the consolidated financial statements, a Civil Suit claiming Rs. 25 344
lacs was filed by a third party against various entities including the Company and certain entities
within the Fortis Group relating to “Fortis, SRL and La-Femme” brands. Based on legal advice of
external legal counsel, the Management believes that the claims are without legal basis and not
tenable. Further, as mentioned in Note 56 of the consolidated financial statements, the tenure of brand
license agreement entered by the Company has expired and the Parent Company has filed an
application before the Hon'ble Supreme Court of India seeking permission for change of company
name, brand and logo. The matter is currently sub-judice.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Other Information

The Holding Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information,
The other information comprises the information included in the holding Company's annual report, but
does not include the financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed and based on the work done/ audit report
of other auditors, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The Holding Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation and
presentation of these consolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the Act that givea
true and fair view of the consolidated state of affairs, consolidated profit/ loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group including
its joint ventures in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act. The respective Management
and Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its joint ventures are responsible for
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
the assets of each company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent: and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to
the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose
of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Management and Directors of the Holding
Company, as aforesaid.
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In preparing the consolidated financial statements. the respective Management and Board of Directors of
the companies included in the Group and of its joint ventures are responsible for assessing the ability of
each company to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable. matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the respective Board of Directors either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic aiternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its joint ventures are
responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of each company.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the hasis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to the consolidated financial
statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls based on our audit,

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting in preparation of consolidated financial statements and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the appropriateness of this assumption. If we conelude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group and its joint ventures to cease to continue as a going concern.

® Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

* Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of such entities or
business activities within the Group and its joint ventures to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of
financial information of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we
are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated financial statements,
which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction,
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supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our
audit opinion. Our responsibilities in this regard are further described in para (a) of the section titled
‘Other Matters” in this audit report.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identi fy during our audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Other Matters

(a) We did not audit the financial statements of | subsidiary, whose financial statements reflect total
assets of Rs. 2.528.38 lacs as at 31 March 2021, total revenues of Rs. 1,546.83 and net cash inflows
amounting to Rs. 1.086.26 lacs for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated
financial statements. The consolidated financial statements also include the Group's share of net profit
(and other comprehensive income) of Rs. 4,363.00 lacs for the year ended 31 March 2021, in respect
of 2 joint ventures, whose financial statements have not been audited by us. These financial statements
have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management and
our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and
disclosures included in respect of these subsidiary and joint ventures, and our report in terms of sub-
section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries and Jjoint
ventures is based solely on the audit reports of the other auditors.

Out of these, 1 subsidiary and 1 joint venture are located outside India whose financial statements and
other financial information have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in their respective countries and which have been audited by other auditors under generally
accepted auditing standards applicable in their respective countries, The Company’s management has
converted the financial statements of such subsidiary and joint venture located outside India from
accounting principles generally accepted in their respective countries to accounting principles
generally accepted in India. We have audited these conversion adjustments made by the Company’s
management. Our opinion in so far as it relates to the balances and affairs of such subsidiaries and
Joint ventures located outside India is based on the report of other auditors and the conversion
adjustments prepared by the management of the Company and audited by us.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the
work done and the reports of the other auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

A. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of reports of
the other auditors on separate financial statements of such subsidiary and joint ventures as were
audited by other auditors, as noted in the ‘Other Matters’ paragraph, we report, to the extent
applicable, that:

a) We have sought and, obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements,
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b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid

c)

d)

e)

consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of
those books and the reports of the other auditors.

The consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of
account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements,

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company
ason 31 March 2021 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the
reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies and joint ventures incorporated in
India, none of the directors of the Group companies and its joint ventures incorporated in India is
disqualified as on 31 March 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2)
of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies and joint venture incorporated in
India and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure
A,

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014. in our opinion and to the best of our

in
re

formation and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the
ports of the other auditors on separate financial statements of the subsidiary and joint ventures, as

noted in the *Other Matters’ paragraph:

iii.

iv,

The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations as at 31
March 2021 on the consolidated financial position of the Group and its joint ventures. Refer
Note 42,52,54.55 and 56 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group and its joint ventures did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term
contracts including derivative contracts during the year ended 31 March 2021.

There are no amounts which are required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding Company or its subsidiary companies and joint ventures
incorporated in India during the year ended 31 March 2021,

The disclosures in the consolidated financial statements regarding holdings as well as
dealings in specified bank notes during the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December
2016 have not been made in the financial statements since they do not pertain to the financial
vear ended 31 March 2021,
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C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s report under section 197(16):

According to the information and explanations given to us, and based on the reports of the statutory
auditors of such subsidiary company and joint ventures incorporated in India which were not
audited by us, no remuneration has been paid by the Company to any of its director during the
current vear.

ForBS R & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm's Registration No.: 101248W/W-
100022

\\_F_,::;S’
Rajesh Arora
Partner

Place: Gurugram Membership No. 076124
Date:20 May 2021 UDIN: 21076124 AAAABF5235
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ report on the consolidated financial statements of SRL
Limited for the year ended 31 March 2021

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

(Referred to in paragraph A(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

Opinion

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for the
year ended 31 March 2021, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements of SRL Limited (hercinafter referred to as “the Holding Company™) and such
companies incorporated in India under the Companies Act, 2013 which are its subsidiary companies and
its joint venture company, as of that date.

In our opinion, the Holding Company and such companies incorporated in India which are its subsidiary
companies and a joint venture company. have, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls
with reference to consolidated financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating
effectively as at 31 March 2021, based on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements criteria established by such companies considering the essential components of such
internal controls stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal F inancial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India {the “Guidance Note™).

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls with reference to consolidated finaneial statements based on the
criteria established by the respective Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design. implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies
Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as “the Act™),

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statemnents. Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit invelves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
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operating effectiveness of the internal controls based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditor
of a joint venture company, in terms of their repaorts referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls with
reference to consolidated financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Consolidated Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded 45 necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have
a material effect on the financial statements,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial controls with Reference to consolidated Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Other Matters

Our aforesaid reports under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of
the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements insofar as it relates to 1
Jjoint venture company, which is a company incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding report of
the auditor of such company incorporated in India.

ForBS R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm's Registration No. 101248W/W-100022

o

Rajesh Arora
Place: Gurugram Partner
Date:20 May 2021 Membership No. 076124

UDIN: 21076124 AAAABF5235



SRL LIMITED

COMNSOLI BALA 5 AT 31 CH 2
As at As at
Wt 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
ASSETS (Rupees in Lakhs) (Rupees in Lakhs)
Mon-current assets
(&} Froperty, plant and equipment 5 26,112.37 24,595.23
(b} Capital work-in-progress 5 111.45 17.01
(€] Right-of-use assets 40 5.431.77 6,243.61
(d) Goodwill i 41,917.79 41,822.64
(2] Other Intangible assets 6 1,824.50 2,227.64
{F] Bquity accounted Investeas ¥ 5.587.47 4,024,498
{g) Financlal assets
(1} Loans 4 973,44 1,054,949
(i) Other finandal assets 9 26.66 8,205.02
{h) Deferred tax assets (net) 10 2,458,246 3,288.67
(I} Mon-current tax assets (net) 11 3,810.23 3,375.25
{1} Other non-cirent assets 12 2.930.05 4,837.63
Total non-current assets 92,183.99 99,692.17
Current assets
{a) Inventories 13 3,758.77 3,056.45
{b) Financial assets
(1) Trade receivables 14 14,287.35 14,505,240
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 15 22,633.08 3,917.21
(lii} Bank balances other than (i) above 16 13,266.05 1.277.79
{iv) Loans 17 11,133.55 13,599.35
{v) Other finandal assets 1B 581.76 637.51
(€} Other current assets 19 764,70 908,67
() Assets held for sale 20 - BO.67
Total current assets 66,447.26 43,991.03
Total assets ‘iﬁ!:llu 11!,!!&]2
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
(a) Equity share capital 1 7,842.56 7.842.56
3] Other equity 123,295.66 110, 210.50
Total equity 131,138.22 118,053.06
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
{a) Fnandal Habllities
(I} Borrowings 22 97.02 11.54
(i} Lease llabilities 40 3,970.57 4,769.17
(I} Other financial Nabilities 23 586.77 818,25
(b} Provistons 24 2,492.01 2,325,111
(€] Cther non-current labdities 25 .26 7.26
Total non-current Habilities 7,153.63 7,831.73
Current liabilities
(a) Financial Babilities
(i) Lease llablitics 40 1,726.73 1,715.86
{lI) Trade payables 26
- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small anterprisas 268.42 134,47
- Tolal outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 11,372.52 8,876.37
small enterprises
(1) Other Anandal llabilitles 27 3, 872.06 3,943.72
(b) Other current Habilitias 28 2,403.86 2,377.61
(c] Provistons 9 B95 81 651,28
Total current llabilities 20,339.40 17,699.31
Total Habilitias 27,493.03 25,631.04
Nutal acuity e Slabim —dERS3L,25 14368310
See accompanying notes forming integral part of the consolidated financial 1-56

statements
In terms of our report attached

For BS R & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants
[CAT Firm's Reglstration No.: 101248W/W-100022

o
NS

Rajesh Arora
Bartnar
Menbership Number; 076124

Surugram
Daater © 20 May 2021

For and on behalfl of the Board of Directo
SRL LIMITED

Srinivas Chidambaram
Director
DIN: 00514665

Director
DIN:02775637

Anand K
Chief Exacutive Officer

umit Goel
Company Secrelary

Gurugram
Date : 20 May 2021



SRAL LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

Income

Revenue from operations
Cither income

Total income

Expenses
{a) Cost of materials consumed
(b) Cost of tests outsourced
(g} Emplayee benefits expense
(d) Finance costs
(e) Depreciation and amortisation expense
(F} Other expenses
Total expenses

Profit from continuing operations before share of profit of equity
accounted investees and Income tax

Share of profit of equity accounted investess (net of income tax)
Profit from continuing operations before income tax
Tax expense

{a) Current tax

(b} Deferred tax expense
Total tax expenses

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

A (i) Items that will not be redassified subsequently to profit or loss

{a) Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans of the Company and its
subsidianies

(b} Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans of joing ventures

Income tax relating to items that will not be recdassified subsequently to
profit or loss

(a) Income tax on remeasurements of the defined benefit plans of the
Company and its subsidiaries

{b) Income tax on remeasurements of the defined benefit plans of joint
ventures

(it

B (1) Itemns that will be reclassified to profit or loss
(&) Exchange differences in translating the financial statements of fareign
nperatlnns
Total other comprehensive income/{loss] (net of income tax)
(A(I+I)+B(i))

Total comprehansive income for the year

Profit far the year attributable to:

- Dwners of the Company

Other comprehengive income for the year attributable to:
- Dreners of the Company

Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to:
- Qwiners of the Company

Earnings per equity share
(i} Basic {in Rupees)
(i} Diluted (in Rupees)

See accompanying notes forming integral part of the consolidated financial
statements

In terms of our report attached

For BS R & Co. LLP
Charterad Accowntants

ICAL Firm's Registration MNo.:101248W/W-100022

Rajesh Arora
Partner
Membership Number:0761 24

Gurygram
Dake ; 20 May 2021

Nates Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
{Rupees in Lakhs) {Rupees in Lakhs)

30 103,507.35 101,833,10
ch | 2.562.07 2,026.75
106,069.42 103,659.85

az 28,761.99 24,105.81
1,212.41 1,198.62

33 24,349.51 25,253.90
34 1,179.26 1,273.13
s 5,206.53 5,762.87
36 31,682.07 33,373.77
92,391.77 90,968.10

13,677.65 12,691.75

50 4,356.96 &a71.85
18,034.61 13,363.60

a7 4,078.36 4,0328.94
az 831.72 777.68
4,910.08 4,806.62
1313453 8,556.98
43 {4.06) (279.08)
B.07 (30.29)

37 1.31 69,28
37 {2.03) 7.62
3.29 {231.78)
51.63 (92.77)

54.92 {324.55)

— 13,179.35 8,232.43
13,124.53 8,556,098
54.92 [324.55)

13,179.45 B,232.43

k] 16.74 10.51
s 16.62 10.85

1-56

For and on behalf of the Board of

SRL LIMITED w

Dr, Ash Raghuvanshi
Director
DIN:D2775637

v
2
Anand K

Chief Executive Officer

Gurugram
Date : 20 May 2021

@
r

Srinivas Chidambaram

Director

DIN: 00514665
-




SAL LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

Notes Yoear ended Year anded
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
(Rupees in Lakhs) {Rupees in Lakhs}
A Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax 18,034.61 13,363.60
Adjustments for;
Depreciation and amortisation expense 35 5,206.53 5,762.87
Prefit on disposal of property, plant and equipments {net) 31 (11.30} {0.54)
Impairment loss on assets held for sale 36 - 14.47
Share of profit of Jsint ventures 50 (4,356.98) {671.85)
Lass allowance for doubtful deposits and advances 36 56.39 64,42
Loss allowance far trade receivables 1,426.73 1,399.69
Advances written off 10,77 -
Bad debts written off - 2.26
Equity settled share based payment 33 (94.259) 149,33
Liabilities/provisions no langer reouired written back 30 {494.84) {605.95)
Finance costs 34 1,179.26 1,273.13
Interest incomse 3 (2,356.81) {1,707.60)
Operating profit before changes in assets and liabilities 18,600.09 19,043.83
(Increase) in Inventories (702.32) (541.04)
{Increase)/Decrease in trade receivables (refer note 1) {1,208.80) 17,833.92
Decrease/(Increase] in leans and other financial assets {refer note 1) 2,429.80 (13,268,55)
Increase in other current assets (69.03) {456.56)
Increase in trade payables 2,630.03 B67.41
Increase in other financial liabilities 282.59 59321
Incrésse in provisions 110,45 162.0%
Increase In other liabilities 25,98 037.90
Cash generated from operations 12,098.79 24,972.21
Direct taxes paid (net) [4,513.08) (5,219.99)
Met cash generated from operating activities 17,585.71 19,752.22
B  Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received 2,269.18 1,220.50
Fixed deposits {with maturity of more than three months) (net) 2,188.10 (15,296.33)
Acquisition of business (refer note 494) {70.00) -
Dividend from joint venture 2,800.00 .
Payments for purchase af property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (3,724.07) (3,344.81)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 254.72 277.53
Mot cash generated from f{used in) investing activities 3,717.93 {17,143.11)
C Cash flows from financing activities®
Proceeds from boarrowings 124,63
Repayments of borrowings (10.97} -
Lease payment {1,851.45) (1,666.78)
Finance cost paid {501.61) {960.19)
Het cash used in financing activities [2,639.40) (2,6326.97)
D Effect of exchange rate changes 51.563 (92.77)
Wet (decrease)/ increase in cash and cash cquivalents [A+B+C+0] 18,715.87 {110.63)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 3,917.21 4,027.84
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 15 _M —0 1721

*Changes in financial liabilities arising from financing activities

Particulars Lease liability Borrowings Interest Accrued
As at 01 April 2019 7.194.65 11.16

Additien of lsase liabllity 1,755.48 -

Derecognition of lease liability (798.32)

Interest cost 683.76 - -
Payment of lease liabilities {including interest of R2.683,76 Lakhs) {2,350.54) - -
Foreign exchange difference - 0.78 -
Finance cost - - 276.43
Finance cost paid - - (276.43)
As at 31 March 2020 6,485.03 11.94 -

As at 01 April 2020 6,485.03 11.94

Addition during the year 1,522.53 134,63

Derecegnition of lease Habiliky (449.29) - -
Inberest cost 630.26 - 272.07
Fayrnent of lease llabliities (including interest of Rs.630.26 Lakhs) {2,481.71) = -
Foreign exchange difference {9.52) (0.28) -
Repayments of barrowings during the year - (10.97) -
Finance cost paid - - {271.35)
As at 31 March 2021 5,697.30 125.32 o.72

e



SAL LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

Notes:

1. During the previous year, trade receivables of Rs. 16,000 Lakhs were converted
2, During the yvear, the Company paid Rs. 295.45 tekhs {31 March 2020 Rs. 291

See accompanying notes forming integral part of the cansolidated financial statements

In berms of aur report attached

For BS R & Co. LLP

Charterad Accountants
ICAL Firm's Registration Ma.: 101 248W/W-100022

\_F;zﬁ,ﬂ%
Rajesh Arora

Partnar
Membership Number: 076124

Gurugram
Date @ 20 May 2021

inta loans. Qut of this A5, 3,000.00 Lakhs was repaid during the previous year,
.17 lakhs) towards corporate social responsibility expenditure (refer note 44),

1-56

Far and on behalfl of the Board of Directors of

SHL LIMITED
M "
-

« Ash h Raghuvanshi Srinivas Chidambaram

Director Dirmctor

DIN: 02775637 DIN: 00514665
Anand K Ma h Shirodkar
Chiel’ Executidh Officer i arcial Qfficor

Gurugram
Date : 20 May 2021
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SRL LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2021

Note 1. Corporate Information

SRL Limited (“the Company” or “Holding Company” or “SRL"™), is a public limited Company incorporated in
1995. The registered office of the Company is situated at Fortis Hospital, Sector-62, Phase - VIII, Mohali -
160062, Punjab, India and the corporate office of the Company is situated at Plot No. GP-26, Maruti Industrial
Estate Udyog Vihar, Sector -18 Gurgaon 122015 Haryana.

As a part of its business activities, the Company holds interest in its subsidiaries (the Company and its
subsidiaries hereinafter referred to as the *Group’) and the Group’s interest in Jjoint ventures through which it
manages and operates a network of clinical reference laboratories. to provide testing, diagnostics and prognostics
monitoring/ screening tests services. The Group also provides laboratory support services for clinical research
studies and diagnostics centers.

Note 2. Significant accounting policies

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these Consolidated
Financial Statements (“consolidated financial statements”). The accounting policies adopted are consistent with
those of the previous financial year.

(a)  Basis of preparation
(i) Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended notified under Section
133 of Companies Act, 2013, (“the Act™) and other relevant provisions of the Act. All the amounts included in
the consolidated financial statements are reported in lacs of Indian Rupees and are rounded to two decimals,
except per share data,

(i) Funcrional and presentation currency

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is also the Group’s functional
currency. However, the functional currency of the following foreign subsidiary and joint venture is as follows:

Subsidiary:
- SRL Diagnostics FZ — LLC- United Arab Emirates Dirham (AED)

Joint YVenture:
- SRL Diagnostics (Nepal) Private Limited - Nepalese Rupees



SRL LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2021

(1ii)  Historical cost convention

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under historical cost convention on accrual basis,
unless otherwise stated. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

(b)  Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Group, and group’s interest in its

joint ventures, Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee.

Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has:

(i) Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities
of the investee)

(ii) Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and
(iif)  The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns,

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support this presumption
and when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers
all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(1) The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee.

(ii) Rights arising from other contractual arrangements

(i) The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights

(iv)  The size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of the holdings of the
other voting rights holders.

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of an entity begins when the Group
obtains control over that entity and ceases when the Group loses control over the entity. Assets, liabilities,
income and expenses of an entity acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated
financial statements from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the entity.

These consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and
other events in similar circumstances. If a member of the Group uses accounting policies other than those
adopted in these consolidated financial statements for like transactions and events in similar circumstances,
appropriate adjustments are made to that Group member’s financial statements in preparing the consolidated
financial statements to ensure conformity with the Group’s accounting policies.

The financial statements of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to same reporting date
as that of the parent company. When the end of the reporting period of the parent is different from that of a
member of the Group, the member prepares, for consolidation purposes, additional financial information as of
the same date as the financial statements of the parent to enable the parent to consolidate the financial
information of the subsidiary, unless it is impracticable to do so.




SRL LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2021

(c)

a)

b)

d)

(d)

Consolidation procedure

Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the parent with those
of its subsidiaries.

Investment in joint ventures have been accounted under the equity method as per Ind AS 28 - “Investment
in Associates and Joint Ventures”

Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the parent’s investment in each subsidiary and the parent’s

portion of equity of each subsidiary. Business combinations policy explains how to account for any related
goodwill,

Eliminate in full, intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between entities of the Group (profits or losses resulting from intragroup transactions that are
recognized in assets, such as inventory and fixed assets, are eliminated in full). Intragroup losses may
indicate an impairment that requires recognition in the consolidated financial statements. Ind AS 12
“Income Taxes™ applies to temporary differences that arise from the elimination of profits and losses
resulting from intragroup transactions.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the equity
holders of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance. Non-controlling interest in the results and the equity of
subsidiaries are shown separately in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity and Consolidated Balance Sheet.

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in a loss of control as
transactions with equity owners of the Group. A change in ownership interest results in an adjustment
between the carrying amounts of the controlling and non-controlling interests to reflect their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the amount of the adjustment to non-controlling
interests and any consideration paid or received is recognised within equity.

Current versus non-current classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/ non-current classification.

An asset is treated as current when:

* Itis expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

s Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading;

 Itis expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period: or

* Itis cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting period.

The Group classifies all other assets as non-current.



SRL LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2021

A liability is current when:
» Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;
e Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading;
® Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period: or
* There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting period.
The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities respectively.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and
cash equivalents. The Group has identified twelve months as its operating cycle for the purpose of current-non-
current classification of assets and liabilities.

(e) Measurement of fair values

A number of the accounting policies and disclosures require measurement of fair values, for both financial and
non-financial assets and liabilities. Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based
on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities,

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level | that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).

The Group has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. This includes a
finance team that has overall responsibility for overseeing all significant fair value measurements, including Level
3 fair values.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses observable market data as far as possible.
If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value
hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy
as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement. The Group recognises transfers between
levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the change has occurred.

() Business combinations

Business combinations (other than business combinations between common control entities) are accounted for
using the purchase (acquisition) method. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the fair value of the
consideration transferred, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange.
The consideration transferred does not include amounts related to the settlement of pre-existing relationships;
such amounts are generally recognised in the Statements of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income. The
cost of acquisition also includes the fair value of any contingent consideration. Identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at fair value at the

o



SRL LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2021

date of acquisition. Transaction costs incurred in connection with a business combination are expensed as
incurred. The excess of the consideration transferred over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than the fair value of the net identifiable assets of the business
acquired, the difference is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity as capital reserve
provided there is clear evidence of the underlying reasons for classifying the business combination as a bargain
purchase.

Business combinations arising from transfers of interests in entities that are under the control of the shareholder
that controls the Group are accounted for as if the acquisition had occurred at the beginning of the earliest
comparative period presented or, if later, at the date that common control was established; for this purpose
comparatives are revised. The assets and liabilities acquired are recognized at their carrying amounts. The identity
of the reserves is preserved, and they appear in the consolidated financial statements of the Group in the same
form in which they appeared in the financial statement of the acquired entity. The differences, if any, between the
consideration and the amount of share capital of the acquired entity is transferred to capital reserve.

(2)  Property, plant and equipment (PPE) and intangible assets
(i)  Property, plant and equipment

Freehold land is carried at cost. All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, which includes
capitalized finance costs, less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment loss. The cost of an
item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and other non-
refundable taxes or levies, freight, any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for
its intended use and estimated cost of dismantling and restoring onsite; any trade discounts and rebates are
deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate
asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
reporting period in which they are incurred.

Advances paid towards acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each Balance Sheet date, are
shown under other non-current assets and cost of assets not ready for intended use before the year end, are shown
as capital work-in-progress.




SRL LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED

31 MARCH 2021

(ii)

Goodwill and Intangible assets

* For measurement of goodwill that arises from business combination, refer to accounting policy thereon
above. Subsequent measurement is at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

¢ Internally generated goodwill is not recognised as an asset. With regard to other internally generated
intangible assets:

Expenditure on research activities, undertaken with the prospect of gaining new scientific or
technical knowledge and understanding, is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as
incurred.

Development expenditure including regulatory cost and legal expenses leading to product
registration/ market authorisation relating to the new and/or improved product and/or process
development is capitalised only if development costs can be measured reliably, the product or
process is technically and commercially feasible, future economic benefits are probable, and the
Group intends to and has sufficient resources to complete development and to use the asset. The
expenditure capitalised includes the cost of materials, direct labour, overhead costs that are directly
attributable to preparing the asset for its intended use, and directly attributable finance costs (in the
same manner as in the case of tangible fixed assets). Other development expenditure is recognised
in the Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred.

Intangible assets that are acquired (including goodwill recognized for business combinations) are

measured initially at cost. After initial recognition, an intangible asset is carried at its cost less
accumulated amortization (for finite lives intangible assets) and any accumulated impairment loss.
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits from the
specific asset to which it relates.

(iii) Depreciation and amortization methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Depreciation is provided on straight line basis on the original cost/ acquisition cost of assets or other amounts
substituted for cost of Property, plant and equipment as per the useful life specified in Part 'C' of Schedule II of
the Act, read with notification dated 29 August 2014 of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, except for certain
classes of Property, plant and equipment which are depreciated based on the internal technical assessment of the
management,

rsry



SEL LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2021

The details of useful life are as under:

I?'IanagEment Useful life as per

Category of assets E'S-ttmat;; ;;f useful Schedule TT
Plant and Machinery

- Laboratory equipment- Pathology 13 years 13 years

- Laboratory equipment- Imaging 10 years 13 years
Building — RCC Frame structure 60 years 60 years
Office equipment 5 years 5 years
Furniture and fittings 10 years 10 years
Furniture and fittings- signage 5 years 10 years
Vehicles B vears 8§ years
Computers and accessories 3 years 3 years
Air conditioners 8 years 5 years

Freehold land is not depreciated.

- Depreciation on leasehold improvements is provided over the lease term or 5 years (which is the expected useful
life), whichever is shorter.

Goodwill is not amortized and is tested for impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that they might be impaired.

Estimated useful lives of the intangible assets are as follows:

Category of assets Management estimate of Useful Life
Software and trademarks 3-10 years
Assay developed 5 years

Depreciation and amortization on property, plant and equipment and intangible assets added/disposed off during
the year has been provided on pro-rata basis with reference to the date of addition/disposal.

Depreciation and amortization methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and adjusted if appropriate.




SRL LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2021

(iv) Derecognition

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are derecognised on disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use and disposal. Losses arising from retirement and gains or losses arising from
disposal of a tangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(h)  Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be
impaired. The Group’s non-financial assets other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each
reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated,

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows (i.e. corporate assets) are grouped
together into cash-generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest group of assets that generates cash
nflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs. Goodwill is allocated to cash-
generating units for the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash-generating units or
groups of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the business combination in which the goodwill
arose. The units or groups of units are identified at the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes.

The recoverable amount of a CGU is the higher of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. Value in use
is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the CGU.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable
amount. Impairment loss recognized in respect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets of the CGU (or group
of CGUs) on a pro rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not subsequently reversed. In respect of other assets for which
impairment loss has been recognized in prior periods, the Group reviews at reporting date whether there is any
indication that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made only to the extent that the
asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

S



SRL LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2021

(i) Financial instrument

A Financial instrument is any contract that gives rise 1o a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:
® Debt instruments at amortised cost
*  Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)
Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

Debt instruments at amortised cost

A *debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if the asset is held within a business model whose objective
is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding,
After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate (EIR) method. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument to the gross carrving amount of the
financial asset or the amortised cost of the financial liability. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortisation is included in other income in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The losses arising from impairment
are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

Debt instrument at FVOCT
A “debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVOCI if the objective of the business model is achieved both by
collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, and the asset’s contractual cash flows represent

SPPL

-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2021

Debt instruments included within the FVOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at
fair value. Fair value movements are recognised in the other comprehensive income (OCI). On derecognition of
the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified to the Statement of Profit and
Loss. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR
method,

Debt instrument at FVTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for
categorisation as at amortised cost or as FVOCI, is classified as at FVTPL. In addition, at initial recognition, the
Group may irrevocably elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortised cost or FVOCI
criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement
or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’).

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognised in
the Statement of Profit or Loss.

Equity investments

Equity investments in jointly controlled entities are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Where an indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of the investment is assessed and written down
immediately to its recoverable amount. On disposal of investments in such entities, the difference between net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amounts are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

All other equity investments which are in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments
which are held for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to
which Ind AS 103 applies are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments in scope of Ind AS 109,
the Group may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in
the fair value. The Group makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made
on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Group decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVOCL then all fair value changes on the instrument,
excluding dividends, are recognised in the OCL. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to the Statement
of Profit and Loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss to
retained earnings.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognised
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognizes loss allowance using the expected credit lass (ECL) model for the financial assets which
are not fair valued through profit or loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing
component is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. For all financial assets with contractual cash flows
other than trade receivable, ECLs are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been
a significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which case those are measured at lifetime ECL. The
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amount of ECL (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date is recognised as an
impairment gain or loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets)
is primarily derecognized (i.e., removed from the Group’s balance sheet) when:

¢  The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

® The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of
the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as
at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition.
Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense,
are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised
in Statement of Profit and Loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in Statement of Profit and
Loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the Balance Sheet when. and

only when, the Group currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to
settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and scttle the liability simultaneously.
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(i) Inventories

Inventories are valued at lower of cost or net realisable value except scrap, which is valued at net estimated
realisable value.

The Group uses weighted average method to determine cost for all categories of inventories except for goods in
transit which is valued at specifically identified purchase cost, Cost includes all costs of purchase, and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition inclusive of non-refundable
(adjustable) taxes wherever applicable.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs
necessary to make the sale. The comparison of cost and net realisable value is made on an item-by-item basis.

(k)  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, demand deposits with banks and other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less.

For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalent includes cash in hand, in banks. demand deposits
with banks and other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less, net of
outstanding bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and are considered part of the cash management
system.

() Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-oceurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Group or a
present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that
cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Group does not recognize a contingent liability
but discloses its existence in the consolidated financial statements unless the possibility of an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits is remote. Contingent liabilities and commitments are reviewed by the
management at each balance sheet date.

Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial statements, However, contingent assets

are assessed continually and if it is virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise. the asset and
related income are recognised in the period in which the change occurs.
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(m) Provisions

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined
by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. Where discounting is used. the increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at reporting date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When
some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third
party, the receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and
the amount of the rleceivable can be measured reliably.

A contract is considered to be onerous when the expected economic benefits to be derived by the Group from the
contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the contract. The provision for an
onerous contract is measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract
and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract. Before such a provision is made, the Group recognises
any impairment loss on the assets associated with thatcontract,

Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no
longer probable that the outflow of resources would be required to settle the obli gation, the provision is reversed.

(n)  Revenue recognition

Revenue primarily comprises medical testing charges. Medical testing charges consists of fees received for
various tests conducted in the field of pathology and radiology.

Contracts with customers could include promises to transfer multiple services to a customer. The Group assesses
the services promised in a contract and identifies distinct performance obligation in the contract. Revenue for
each distinct performance obligation is measured at an amount that reflects the consideration which the Group
expects to receive in exchange for those services and is net of tax collected from customers and remitted to
government authorities and applicable discounts and allowances including claims.

Revenue from Medical tests is recognized on accrual basis when the reports are generated and released to
customers, net of discounts, if any.

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer. Revenue is recognised
al a point in time when the Company satisfies performance obligations by transferring the promised services to
its customers. Generally, each test represents a separate performance obligation for which revenue is recognised
when the test report is generated i.e. when the performance obligation is satisfied. For allocating the transaction
price, the Company has measured the revenue in respect of each performance obligation of a contract at its
relative standalone selling price. The price that is regularly charged for a test when registered separately is the
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best evidence of its standalone selling price. Any revenue transaction for which the Group has acted as an agent
or broker without assuming the risks and rewards of ownership have been reported on a net basis.

Excess of revenue recognised over billings on contracts is recorded in books as unbilled revenue. Unbilled
revenue is classified as other financial assets when there is unconditional right to receive cash, and only passage
of time is required, as per contractual terms. Contract liabilities include deferred revenue. Deferred revenue is
recognised as other current liability when there is billings in excess of revenue.

Loyalty program liability represents the liability of the Group towards the points earned by the members, which
entitle customers to discount on future purchase of services, The Group estimates the fair value of points awarded
under the loyalty program by applying statistical techniques. Inputs to the model include making assumptions
about expected redemption rate basis the Group’s historic trends of redemption and expiry period of the points
and such estimates are subject to significant uncertainty.

Other operating revenue comprises management fees which is recognised on an accrual basis, in accordance
with the terms of the relevant agreements, as and when services are rendered.

{0) Employee benefits
Shori-term employee benefits

All employee benefits falling due within twelve months of the end of the period in which the employees render
the related services are classified as short-term employee benefits, which include benefits like salaries, wages,
short term compensated absences, performance incentives, etc. and are recognised as expenses in the period in
which the employee renders the related service and measured accordingly.

Post-employment benefits
Post-employment benefit plans are classified into defined benefits plans and defined contribution plans as under:

a)  Gratuity:
The Group has an obligation towards gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible
employees. The plan provides for a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death
while in employment or on termination of employment of an amount based on the respective
employee's salary and the tenure of employment. The liability in respect of gratuity is recognised
in the books of account based on actuarial valuation by an independent actuary. The gratuity
liability for certain employees of the Group is funded with Life Insurance Corporation of India.

b)  Superannuation:
Certain employees of the Group are also participants in the superannuation plan (‘the Plan"), a
defined contribution plan. Contribution made by the Group to the plan during the year is charged
to Statement of Profit and Loss.

c) Provident fund:
(i) The Group’s contribution to provident fund is treated as defined contribution plan under which
an entity pays fixed contributions to government administered fund and will have no legal or
constructive obligation to pay further amounts.
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(i) The Group's contribution to the provident fund is charged to Statement of Profit and Loss in the
periods during which the related services are rendered by employees,

Other long-term employee benefits:

As per the Group's policy, eligible leaves can be accumulated by the employees and carried forward to future
periods to either be utilised during the service or encashed. Encashment can be made on retirement including
early retirement, on withdrawal of scheme, at resignation and upon death of the employee. Accumulated
compensated absences are treated as other long-term employee benefits,

Termination benefits are recognised as an expense when, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation.

Actuarial valuation

The liability in respect of all defined benefit plans and other long-term benefits is accrued in the books of account
on the basis of actuarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary using the Projected Unit Credit Method.
The obligation is measured at the present value of estimated future cash flows. The discount rates used for
determining the present value of obligation under defined benefit plans, is based on the market yields on
Government securities as at the Balance Sheet date, having maturity periods approximating to the terms of
related obligations.

Remeasurement gains and losses on other long-term benefits are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
in the year in which they arise. Remeasurement gains and losses in respect of all defined benefit plans arising
from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the period in which they
occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are included in other equity in the Statement of Changes
in Equity and in the Balance Sheet. Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from
plan amendments or curtailments are recognised immediately in profit or loss as past service cost. Gains or
losses on the curtailment or settlement of any defined benefit plan are recognised when the curtailment or
settlement occurs. Any differential between the plan assets (for a funded defined benefit plan) and the defined
benefit obligation as per actuarial valuation is recognised as a liability if it is a deficit or as an asset if it is a
surplus (to the extent of the lower of present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds
from the plan or reduction in future contribution to the plan).

Past service cost is recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the
average period until the benefits become vested, To the extent that the benefits are already vested immediately
following the introduction of, or changes to, a defined benefit plan, the past service cost is recognised
immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Past service cost may be either positive (where benefits are
introduced or improved) or negative (where existing benefits are reduced).



SRL LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2021

(p) Share-based payments

The grant date fair value of options granted (net of estimated forfeiture) to employees of the Group is recognized
as an employee expense with a corresponding increase in equity over the period that the employees become
unconditionally entitled to the options. The expense is recorded for each separately vesting portion of the
award as if the award was, in substance, multiple awards. The increase in equity recognized in connection with
share-based payment transaction is presented as a separate component in equity under “share option outstanding
account”. The amount recognized as  an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of stock options that
vest. For the option awards, grant date fair value is determined under the option-pricing model (Black-Scholes-
Merton). Forfeitures are estimated at the time of grant and revised, if necessary, in subsequent periods if actual
forfeitures materially differ from those estimates.

Corresponding balance of a share-based payment reserve is transferred to general reserve upon expiry of grants
or upon exercise of stock options by an employee.

(gq) Finance costs

Finance costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
Finance cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the finance costs.
General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the construction or production or
development of a qualifying asset are capitalized as part of the cost of that asset. Qualifying assets are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale. All other finance costs are
expensed in the period in which they occur.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the finance costs eligible for capitalization. Ancillary costs incurred in
connection with the arrangement of borrowings are amortised over the period of such borrowings.

(r) Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss except
to the extent that it relates to a business combination, or items recognised directly in equity or in OCL

Current faxes

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any
adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax payable or
receivable is the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering uncertainty
related to income taxes, if any. It is measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting
date.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set oft the recognised
amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.
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Deferred taxes

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and

liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not
recognised for:

= temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that
is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the
time of the transaction;

= temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries, or joint ventures, to the extent that the
Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable
that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future: and

~ taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill,

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary differences
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used. Deferred tax is
measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the period when the asset is realised or the liability
is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. The
measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised
amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

{(s) Leases

(i) As a lessee
The Group accounts for assets taken under lease arrangement in the following manner:

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right of use
asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease
payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of
costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is
located, less any lease incentive received.

The right of use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight line method from the commencement date
to the end of the lease term. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use are determined on the same basis as those
of property and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if
any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the Group’s incremental borrowing rate.
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Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the fixed payments, including in-
substance fixed payments.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured when there
is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in Group’s
estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if the Group changes its
assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been
reduced to zero.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group has elected not to recognise right-of use assets and lease liabilities for short term leases that have a
lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low value assets. The Group recognises the lease payments
associated with these leases as an expense on a straight- line basis over the lease term.

(ii) As a lessor
The Group accounts for assets given under lease arrangement in the following manner:

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to the Group as
lessee are classified as operating leases. Assets subject to operating leases are included in Property, Plant and
Equipment. Rental income on operating lease is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line
basis over the lease term. Costs, including depreciation, are recognized as an expense in the Statement of Profit
and Loss. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased assets and recognised on a straight line basis over the lease term.

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership transfer from
the Company to the lessee. Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the
Company’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect
a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment outstanding in respect of the lease.

(t) Foreign eurrency translation
i) Transactions end balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates
of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at balance sheet date
exchange rates are generally recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates
at the date when the fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried at fair
value are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. For example translation differences on non-monetary
assets such as equity investments classified as FVOCI are recognised in other comprehensive income (OCI).
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fii) Group companies

The results and financial position of foreign operations (none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

. Equity share capital and opening other equity are carried at historical cost.

. All assets and liabilities, both monetary and non-monetary, (excluding share capital, opening reserves and
surplus) are translated using closing rates at Balance Sheet date.

. Profit and Loss items are translated at the respective quarterly average rates or the exchange rate that
approximates the actual exchange rate on date of specific transaction.

U All resulting exchange differences are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income.

When a foreign operation is sold, the associated cumulative exchange differences are reclassified to profit or
loss, as part of the gain or loss on sale.

The items of consolidated cash flow statement are translated at the respective average rates or the exchange rate
that approximates the actual exchange rate on date of specific transaction. The impact of changes in exchange
rate on cash and cash equivalent held in foreign currency is included in effect of exchange rate changes.

(u) Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of
transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The
cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Group are segregated. The Group considers
all highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash to be cash equivalents.

(v) Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of the group that engages in business activities from which it may earn
revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Group’s
other components, and for which discrete financial information is available. Operating segments are reported in
a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM") who
is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, Revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, which are common to the enterprise as a whole and are not allocable to segments
on a reasonable basis, have been treated as "unallocated revenues/ expenses/ assets/ liabilities", as the case may
be.

(w) Earnings per share
(i)  Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:
* the profit attributable to owners of the Group

* by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted
for bonus elements in equity shares issued during the year.
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(1) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to
take into account:

* the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential
equity shares, and

* the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding
assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity share.

Note 3A. Critical estimates and judgments
The preparation of consolidated financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,

income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

Judgments

Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on
the amounts recognised in the financial statements is included in the following notes:

. Leasing arrangement (classification) — Note 2(s)

. Revenue recognition- whether the Company acts as an agent rather than as a principal in a
transaction- Note 2(n)

. Recognition and measurement of contingency: Key assumption about the likelihood and magnitude

of an outflow of resources — Note 42

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material
adjustment in the year ending 31 March 2021 is included in the following notes:

. Financial instruments - Note 2(i)

. Fair value measurement — Note 2(g)

. Estimated impairment of financial assets and non-financial assets — Note 2(h), 2(i)

. Assessment of useful life and residual value of property, plant and equipment and intangible asset —
Note 2(g)

. Revenue recognition- loyalty points- Note 2(n)

. Leasing arrangement (accounting) — Note 2(s)

. Estimation of assets and obligations relating to employee benefits (including actuarial assumptions)
~ Note 43,

. Recognition of deferred tax assets: availability of future taxable profits against which tax losses

carried forward can be used-Note 2(r)
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Note 3B. Recent Pronouncements but not yet effective

On March 24, 2021, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") through a notification. amended Schedule [I]
of the Companies Act, 2013. The amendments revise Division I, I and 11T of Schedule 111 and are applicable
from April 1, 2021. Key amendments relating to Division Il which relate to companies whose financial
statements are required to comply with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 are:

Balance Sheet:

¢ Lease liabilities should be separately disclosed under the head *financial liabilities’, duly distinguished
as current or non-current.

* Certain additional disclosures in the statement of changes in equity such as changes in equity share
capital due to prior period errors and restated balances at the beginning of the current reporting period.

* Specified format for disclosure of shareholding of promoters.

* Specified format for ageing schedule of trade receivables, trade payables, capital work-in-progress
and intangible asset under development.

* If'a Group has not used funds for the specific purpose for which it was borrowed from banks and
financial institutions, then disclosure of details of where it has been used.

* Specific disclosure under ‘additional regulatory requirement’ such as compliance with approved
schemes of arrangements, compliance with number of layers of companies, title deeds of immovable
property not held in name of company, loans and advances to promoters, directors, key managerial
personnel (KMP) and related parties, details of benami property held etc.

Statement of profit and loss:

* Additional disclosures relating to Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR), undisclosed income and
crypto or virtual currency specified under the head *additional information® in the notes forming part
of consolidated financial statements.

The amendments are extensive and the Group will evaluate the same to give effect to them as required by law.

Note 3C- These financial statements have been authorized for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on
20 May 2021.
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Note 4. Composition of the Group

The list of subsidiary and joint ventures considered in the preparation of the consolidated financial

the Group are as under:

statements of

Name of subsidiary/ | Country Proportion Proportion of | Country of Incorporation and other
Joint venture of of ownership | ownership details
Incorpor | interest as at | interest as at
ation 31 March | 31 March
2021 2020
SRL Diagnostics | Nepal 30%  (Joint | 50%  (Joint | SRL Nepal was incorporated on August
{Nepal) Private venture) venture) 7, 2009 under the Companies Act
Limited (formerly 2063(2006). The registered office and
Super Religare principal place of business are located at
Reference Ward No 3, Maharanjgunj, Kathmandu,
Laboratories (Nepal) Nepal and its commercial operation
Private Limited) started from August 31, 2010 to carry on
"SRL Nepal" the business of operating pathology labs
and diagnostics centers in Nepal. SRL
Nepal became joint venture of SRL on
August 7, 2009,
SEL Diagnostics | India 100% 100% SRLD is an Indian Company and carries
Private Limited on the business of operating pathology
(formerly Piramal labs and diagnostics centers. SRLD
Diagnostic  Services became subsidiary of SRL on August 20,
Private Limited) 2010,
"SRLD"
DDRC SREL | India 50%  (Joint | 50% (Joint | DDRC is an Indian Company and carries
Diagnostics  Private venture  of | venture of | on the business of operating pathology
Limited  (formerly SRLD) SRLD) labs and diagnostics centres in India.
DDRC Piramal DDRC became joint venture of SRLD
Diagnostics Services from July 15, 2006 and with the
Pvt. Ltd.) "DDRC" acquisition of SRLD, DDRC became
joint venture in SRL group effective
August 20, 2010,
SRL Reach Limited | India 100% 100% SRL Reach is an Indian Company and
"SRL Reach" carries on the business of operating
pathology labs and diagnostics centres.
SRL Reach was incorporated on May 01,
2015 and became 100% subsidiary of
SRL.
SRL Diagnostics FZ - | United 100% 100% SRL Dubai is a Foreign Company and
LLC "SRL- Dubai" Arab carries on the business of operating
Emirates pathology labs and diagnostics centres.
The Company became a subsidiary of
SRL w.e.f. 5 July 2016 upon acquisition
of 100% shareholding from Fortis
Healthcare International Pte. Limited,

gt
_.._,.-"'_




SRL LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2021

Name of subsidiary/ Country | Proportion Proportion of | Country of Incorporation and other
Joint venture of of ownership | ownership details
Incorpor | interest as at | interest as at
ation 31  March | 31 March
2021 2020
Singapore (FHIPL, a fellow subsidiary
Company).
SRL  Diagnostics | United | Nil 49% SRL Middle East was a Foreign |
Middle East LLC | Arab Company and carried the business of
“SRL Middle East” * | Emirates operating pathology labs and diagnostics

centres). Pursuant to board resolution
dated May 23, 2019, SRL Middle East
was closed on July 15, 2019 due to non-
operation since April 1, 2017, The
Company became a subsidiary of SRL
w.e.f. 5 July 2016 upon acquisition of
100%  shareholding from  Fortis
Healthcare International Pte, Limited.
Singapore (FHIPL, a fellow subsidiary
Company

* SRL Limited owns 49% equity shares of SRL Diagnostics Middle East LLC through SRL Diagnostics FZ-
LLC. However, based on the contractual arrangement between the Group and other shareholder, the Group has
the power to manage the firm technically, financially and administratively to any or all its Board of Directors

and the Management of SRL Diagnostics Middle East LLC is under the exclusive control of
Therefore, the Directors of the Group concluded that the Group has control
LLC, and it is consolidated in these consolidated financial statements.

Note 4A. The consolidated financial statements have been authorized

Directors on 20 May 2021,

the Group.
over SRL Diagnostics Middle East

for issue by the Company’s Board of
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SRL LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Goodwill and Other intangible assets

{Rupees in Lakhs)

Goodwill Other intangible assats
Software Trademark Intangibie assets - Total
Assay developed
Gross Carrying amount
AR 1 April 2019 41,822.64 2,271.06 5,858.20 957.69 9,086.95
Additions £ 291.63 - - 291.63
Disposals = {0.56) L (0.56)
At 31 March 2020 41.822.64 2,562.13 5,858.20 957.69 9,378.02
At 1 April 2020 41,822 64 1.562.13 5.858.20 957.69 9,378,02
Additions 95.15 235.57 40.50 ) 276.07
Disposals - {0.41) - . {0.41)
[At 31 March 2021 41,917.79 2,797.30 5,898.70 957.69 9,653.69
Accumulated amortisation
AL L April 2019 1,549.04 3,274.21 928.32 5,751.57
Arnartisation 655,28 719.38 24,71 1,399.37
Elimination an disposals - (0,56 N = (0.58)
At 31 March 2020 - 2,203,76 3,003,559 953.03 7,150.38
At 1 April 2020 - 2,203.76 3,993.59 953.03 7.150,38
Amortisation 231.19 443.37 4.66 B679.22
Elimination on disposals . (0.41) b - (041
At 31 March 2021 = 2,434.54 4,436.96 B57.69 7,829,119
Nat carrying amount
At 31 March 2020 41,822.64 358.37 1,864.61 4.656 2,227.64
At 31 March 2021 #41,917.79 362,76 1,461.74 = 1,824.50

Goodwill

Goodwill includes the excess consideration

respectively (refer note 494,

The Group's goodwill Is tested for impairment annually at the vear-and or more frequently if thers are
the whole diagnostics business of SRL Diagnostics Private Limited and SRL Lirmd

diagnostic business of SRL Diagnostics Private Limited and SRL Limited respectively.

The recoverable amaunts of the CGUs are determined from value-in-

discount rates, growth rates and expected changes to selling prices

assessments of the tme value of money and the risks specific to
direct costs are based on past practices and expectations of future c

The Group made an assessment of recoverable amaunt of th
approved by management covering a five-year periad. Cash fla

use calculations. The key assu
and direct costs during the
the CGUs. The growth rates
hanges in the market,

e CGUs based on value-in-use calculations which uses ca
ws beyond the five-year perigd were extrapolated using est

Key Assumptions used for value in use calculations are as fallows:

Particulars As at Ag at

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Revenue growth rate for flve years (31 March 2020: & YEBFE] 109 - 19% p.a. 0% - 10% p.a.
Growth rate used for estrapolation of cash flow projections beyand flvo-year A% 4%
period {31 March 2020: 5 years)
Driscount rate 13.00% 13.00%)

Management believes that any reasanable passible change in any of these assumptians would not cause

Sales growth rates - Average annual sales growth rate over the flve year

expectation of market development (including lang term inflation forecast).

Discount rates - Management estimates discount rates using pre-
consideration the time value of money and individual
cabculation is based on the specific circumstances of the

Growth rates - The growth rates are based on
expectations of market development. The weigh

tax rates that reflect current market assessments of
risks of the underlying assets that have not besn incorporated in
Company and its operating segrments and s derived from it weright

industry growth forecasts. Management determines the budgeted growth
ted average growth rates used were consistant with industry reports.

paid by SRL Dlagnostics Private Limited and SRL Limited on the net assets of diagnostics businesses acquired by It

Indicaticns that goodwill might be impaired. The Group considers
ted respectively as a single CGU and hence, the impairment of goodwill is tested on total

mptions for the value-in-use calculations are thase regarding the
year, Management estimates discount rates that reflect current market
are based on Industry growth forecasts, Changes in selling prices and

sh flow projections based on Tinancial budgets
imate rates stated below.

the carrying amount to exceed its recoverable amount.

“'-.9"‘

o

forecast period is based on past perfomance, current industry trend, management

the risks specific to the CGU, taking into
the cash flow estimates. The discount rate
ed average cost of capital {WALCC).

rates based on past performance and its



SRL LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8.

Equity accounted investees

Interest in joint ventures (Unquoted)

SRL Diagnostics (Mepal) Private Limited

240,000 (31 March 2020:240,000) equity shares of Nepalese Rupees 100 each fully paid-
up {refer note 51)

DDRC SRL Diagnostics Private Limited

250,000 {31 March 2020: 250,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully pald up {refer note
52)

Total investments (carrying value) (A+B)

Loans

{Unsecured considered good unless otherwise stated)
Security deposits

= Cansidered good

- Credit impairad

Less: |loss allowance

Loans to employees

Total

Other financial assets

(Unsecured considered good unless otherwise stated)

Balances with baniks

- held as margin monay

- deposits with maturity of mare than 12 manths fram the reporting date
Total

Az at

31 March 2021

As at
31 March 2020

(Rupees in Lakhs)

(Rupees in Lakhs)

288.38 270.73
5,299,090 3,753.75
5,587.47 4,024.48

960.33 1,032.26

1B.55 18.55
(18.55) (18.55)
13.11 22.73

973.44 1,053,099

26.66 201.39
2 8,003.63
__26.66 8,205.02




SRL LIMITED

MOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As at Az at
31 March 2021 31 M 20
{Rupees in Lakhs) (Rupees in Lakhs)
10. Dwefarred tax balances
Deferred tax assets 4, 710,01 4, 728,46
Doferred tax llabilities (2,251.75) {1,439,79)
Deferred tax assets (net) 2,458.26 3,2B8.67
The following is the component wise braak up of deferred tax assets/ (liabliities) presented in the financial statemsernts:
2020-2031
Az at Recognised in Recognised in ather As at
01 April 2020 profit or loss comprehensive 31 March 2021
income

Deferred tax asset
:‘::m,;l;:;tra&ﬂ:::iment &nd other intanglble assets 1,089.02 {155.48) ) 533.54
Loss allowance for doubtful deposits and sdvances 190,78 14.20 - 204,98
Loss allowance for trade recetvables 1,066.17 253,40 1,319.57
Lease liability 1,499.27 {136.03) - 1,363.24
Pravigion far gratuty 436.06 48.09 1.31 485.46
Provisian for compensated absences 219,27 {1.45) - 217.82
Expenditure allowed on actual payment basis 227.89 (42.49) - 185.40
Total deforred tax asset 4, 728,46 (19.76) 1.31 4. 710,01
Deferred tax liability
Intangible assets- Assay developed (1.17) 1.17 - =
Right-of-use assets {1,434.29) 193 40 - {1,240.89)
Property, plant & equipment and ather intangible assets - - {28.03) - {28.03)
software and trademeark
Undistributed profits of subsidiaries® - {982.83) - {982.83)
Expenditure alowed on actual payment basis (4.33) 4.33 L
Total deferred tax liability {1,439.79) (B11.95) - (2,251.75)
Deferred tax asset (net) 3,288.67 (B31.72) 1.31 2,458.28

*Subsequent to year end, SRL Diagnostics Private Umited, a subsidiary of the Company, declared interim dividend af Rs.3,904.76 Lakhs, On the undistributed
profits amount, deferred tax Rabilities of Rs.982.83 Lakhs has been created on account of cutside basis differences.,

2019-30
Movemaent in deferred tax As at Recognised in Recognised in other As at

01 April 2019 profit or loss comprehensive 31 March 2020

Income

Dofarred tax assat
Property, plant & equipment and other intengible assets -
software and brademark 1,519.86 (430.84) - 1,089.02
Less allowance for deubtful deposits and advances 242.06 (51.28) - 190.78
Lass allowance Ter trade recaivables 1,233.08 [166.91) - 1,0466.17
Lease liabiity 7 1,499,327 = 1,499,27
Provision for gratulty 467.10 (101.02) 69.98 436.06
Provision for compensated absences 264.21 (44.94) - 219.27
Unabsorbed Depreciation & brought forward Losses*= 73.B6 (73.88) - -
Minimum alternate tax credit 23.B0 (23.80) - &
Expenditure allowed an actual payment basis 219.54 8,35 - 237.89
Total deferred tax asset 4,043.51 614.97 69.98 4, 728.46
Defarred tax liability
Intangible assets- Assay developed (10.26) 9.09 - (1.17)
Right-of-use assets - (1,434.29) - (1,434.29)
Property, plant & equipment and ather intangible assets - =
software and trademark {36.88) 36.88 .
Expenditure allowed on actual payment basis = (4.33) - {4.33)
Total deferred tax liability {47.14) {1,392.65) = (1,439.79)
Deferred tax asset (net) 3,996.37 {777.68) 59.98 3,2B8.67

** The greup has derecognised deferred tax asset during the year ended March 2020 pertaining to SRL Reasch Limited (subsidiary company) censidering the
lack of profitability of future taxable profits, Details of losses and unabsorbed depreciation on which deferred tax asset is nat recognised are as follows :

As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Expire {Rupees in Lakhs) (Rupees in Lakhs)

Unused losses Tax Unused losses Tax
Business loss
2023-24 42,94 10.81 42.94 10.81
2024-25 94,58 23.81 9459 23.B1
2028-29 BG.76 21.84 . -
Never expire
Unabsarbed depreciation 133.27 33,54 109,20 27.48

Deferred tax assets has not been recognized on temporary differences in relation to indexation benefie of investment in subsidiaries and joint ventures
amaunting te Rs. 7,591.29 Lakhs (31 March 2020; Rs.6,819.77 Lakhs), as the Group is able te control the timing of the reversal of thesg temparary differences
and it is probable that these differences will nat reverse in foreseeabie future,

e



11.

12,

{a)

{b)

Non-currant tax assets (net)

Advance tax and tax deductible source®
Total

*Met of provision for tax

Other non-current assets

{Unsecured considered good wniess otherwise staled)
Capital advances

- Considerd goad

- Considerd doubytful

Less: Loss allawance

Propald expenses

Deposit against cases with income tax autharities
Total

Inventories (lawer of cost and net realisabile value)

Reagents, chemicals and consumables
Taotal

Trade receivables

Secured, considered good
Unsecured, considered gaad
Unsecured, credit impared

Less: Expected credit loss allowance
Total

Due fram related parties (refer note 393
Unsecured, considered good

Unsecured, credit impared

Less: Expected credit boss adowance
Tatal

Notes:

Credit risk arising from trade receivables is managed in accordance with the Grou
procedures. The concentration of credit risk is fimited due ko the fact that the custo
maximum credit period of 7 to 90 days for all its custamers {other than
balance of trade receivables except as mentioned helow:

Customaer Narme

Fartis Hospitals Limited

Escorl Feart Institute & Research Centre Limibed
Hiranandani Healthcare Private Limited

Fortis Healtheare Limited

SRL LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
————ee A TED FINANCIAL STATEM

As at
31 March 2021

As at
31 March 2020

{Rupees in Lakhs)

{Rupaes in Lakhs)

3,810.23 3,375.35
3,810.23 3,375.25
32,414,58 28,336.22
80.06 1,180.65
303.41 303.41
(303.41) {303.41)
35.05 42.04
3,814.94 3,614.94
3,930.05 4,B37.63
3,758.77 3,056.45
3‘?5177 3,056.45
1,002.13 084,69
9,868, 36 9,345.10
5,615.09 4,402,189
(5,615.09) {4,402.19)
10,670.48 10,329,789
3,416.86 4.175.49
254.13 260,17
(254.13) (260.17)
14,287,358 14,505.28

1,237.92
505.53
798,17
319.53

p's established pelicy with regard te credit limits, control and approval
mer base is large. The Group further limits its credit risk by establishing a
refated parties). There are no customers which represent more than 5% of the total

1,809.70
941,72
446.63
362,35

In accordance with ind AS 109, the Group applied Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for measurement and recagnition of impairment loss towards expected risk

of delays and default in collection. The Group has used a practical expedient by computin
Management makes specific provision in cases where there are known

9 the expected credit loss allowance based on a provision matrie.
specific risks of customer default in making the repayments. The provision matris takes

Inta account historical credis loss experience and adjusted for forward- looking information, The expected eredit loss allowance is based an the ageing of the

days the receivables are due and the rates as given in the provision matri

Ageing

0-1 year

1-2 years

2-3 years
Above 3 Years

Age of receivables
0-1 years

1-2 years

2-1 years

Above 3 Yesrs

Movement in expected credit loss allowance

Balance at the beginning of the year
Add: Recognised during the year

Add: Exchange gain/{loss) on transiation
Lass: Bad debts during the year
Balance at end of the year

%. The provision matrix st the end of the reporting period is as follows:

Expected credit loss Expected credit loss
(%) (%)
2.01 % 3.71%
78.95% 6B.75%
84,3 7% 93.98%
99,62% 98,51%
13,796.38 14,310.56
2,004.63 1,984.51
1,854.06 1,371.03
2,501.50 1,501.54
20,156.57 19,167.64
4,662, 36 3,290.74
1,426.73 1,399.69
{30.06) 55.44
{189.81) (B3.51)
5,869.22 4,662,356
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MOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
— e T L SOLDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks

- On current accounts

- Deposit with original maturity of three months or less
Chegues on hand

Cash on hand

Cash and cash equivalents as per balance shoot

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks

= held as margin money

- deposits with original maturity for mare than 3 months but kess than 12 manths
Total

Loans

(Unsecured considered good uriess otherwise stated)
Security deposits

- Considered good

- Credit impaired

Less:- Loss allowance

Loans to relabed parties=*
Total

The particulars of loans given as required to be disclosed by Section 186 {4) of Companies Act 2013 are as below:

**Loans outstanding from ;

Fartis Hospitals Limited

Escarts Heart Institute and HBesearch Limited

Hiranandani Healthcare Private Limited

The logns were given to meet working capital requirement {refer note 39)
Interest rate (p.a.)

Repayment terms

Othar financial assets

fLinsecired considersd good uniess otherwise stated)
Advances recoverable:

- Considered qood *

- Credit impaired

Less:- Loss allgwance

Unbilled revenus

Interest accrued on fixed depogits

Interest accrued on loens to subsidiaries (refer note 39
Tatal

* includes advances to related party (refer note 39)

Other current assets

(Unsecured considered good unless othenwise stated)
Prepaid expenses ©

- Considerad good

- Considered doubtful

Lessi- Loss allowance

Advances to supplier and employess -
- Considered good

= Congidered doubtful

Less:- Loss alcwance

Balance with statutory authorities
Total

Assets held for sale
Praperty, plant and equipment and other intangible assets (net block)
Less: Impeirment loss

As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
{Rupees in Lakhs) (Rupees in Lakhs)
14,318.53 3,728,24
8,128,312 100.00
20,70 7.B5
165.53 B1.12
22,633.08 3,917.21
189.06 .
13,078,599 7.277.79
13,268.05 7,277.79
416.55 599.35
37243 372.43
(372.43) {372.43)
416.55 599,35
10,717.00 13,000.00
11,133.55 13,590.35
7,492,000 9,018.00
1,884.00 2.272.00
1,341.00 1,710.00
10,50% 10.50%
10th June 2021 6th August 2020
As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
{Rupees in Lakhs) {Rupees in Lakhs)
55.93 98.33
34B.59 290.46
(348.59) (290.46)
55.98 98.33
133.88 105.53
125.88 113.19
266.02 320.46
S5E1.76 637.51
12.10 65.21
535.89 483.89
9.30 9.30
{9.30) (9.30)
243.75 419,52
27 .44 33.48
(27.44) {33.43)
5.26 5. 26
TE4.70 908.67
= 104.14
= 14.47
- B89.67




SRL LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FIMAMCIAL STATEMENTS

21.

a)

L]

c}

o)

2]

Equity share capital
As at Az at
31 March 2021 31 Margh 2020
Number of shares {Rupees in Lakhs) Humber of shares {Rupees in Lakhs)
Autherised share capital
Equity Shares of Rs, 10 each 85, 000,000 B,500.00 85,000,000 8,900.00

Total 89,000,000 B, 900,00 89,000,000 B,900.00

Issund and subscribed share capital

Eguity Shares af Rs.10 mach fully paid up shares for consseration in cash 50,017,582 &,001.76 60,017,582 &,000.76
Equity Shares of Rs.10 each fully paid up shares for consiceratian other than cagh L8, 407 980 1,540,800 18,407,960 1, 840,80
Takal 78,425,542 7.B42.856 TH, 415,542 7,842.56

Recanciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and &t the snd af th yasr

Year ended Yaar anded
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Humber of shares  (Rupees in Lakhs) Humber of sharas (Rupeas in Lakhs)
Equity sharas
Quistanding &t the beginming af the year 78,425 542 784256 T8, 425 547 7,842 56
Quistending at the and of the year ?l,&:b!l! ?‘l-l!..'.'c-! 78 543 43,50

Terms frights attached to equity shares

The Compariy has anky ane class of aquity shares hawing & par value of Rs. 10 esch. In the evant of iguidation of the Campany, the holder of equity shares will be entitied ta receive ramaining
aszets af th Company, after distrbution of a8 pref tial armounts. Tha Company has mada preferential sllstmant of shares to differans shareholders and thane are preferential rights available
ta thass shareholders n accordance with agroamant axecuted with tha respective shareholders, Each halder of aguity shane i entitied ta one vots per share.

Shares held by halding Company fultimate holding company andfor lks

subsidiaries :
Az at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Number of shares {Rugees in Lakhs) Number of shares [Rupoes in Lakhs)
Equity shares of Rs. 10 sach
Fortis Healthcare Limitad (holging company) A5, 236,779 4,.523.68 45,236,779 4,523,658
Details of shares held by gach shareholder halding more than 5% shares
As at Ag at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Mo, of sharas held % of Holding Mo of shares held s of Holding
Equity shares of Rs. 10 asch
Fartes Healthcare Lrnited 45,236,779 576890 45,236,779 ST.E9%
Resurgence PE [nvestmants Limited {Pormerly known a3 Avigo PE nvestments Lid) 6,310,315 B.05% 6,310,315 B.05%
LI Jacob Ballas India Fundg 111 LLC 12,437,811 15.86% 12,437,811 18.86%
Iremational Financa Corporation 5,570,149 7.61% 5,970,140 7.61%
Axls Bank Limeted 4,300,000 5.48% 4,300,000 5.48%

Share options under tha Campany's employes share option plan
&) Under the “Super Religare Laboratories Limited Emplayee Stock Option Plan 20097 (the "Scheme') a5 at 31 Merch 2021 - 457,018 (31 March 2020: 503,878) cutstanding options are
canvartible into 487,018 {31 March 2020: 503,878) equity shares, (refer note 45),

) Under tha "SAL Limfted Emploves Stack Optien Scheme 2013 [the "Scheme’) as at 31 March 2021 - 256,500 (31 March 2020; 527,500) outstanding ootions are convertible into 296,500 (31
March 2020: 527,500) equity shares, (refer note 48),

Aggragate number of equity shares issued for consideration other than cash during the period of five year immediately pracading the reporting date

As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Humber of Shares Humber of Shares
Eguity Shares af Re.10 each fully paid up shares for consideration otfver than cash 18,407,960 18,407 960

Durng the year 2006-17, NYLIM Jacob Ballas India Furd LI LLC {MIBLF) exercisad these right to convert the Compaulsanity convertiblie prefarence shares [CCPS) inta aquity shares of the Comaany
wide their request latter dated 21 Septembar 2006. Board of directors in thair meeting held on 08 Novamiber 2018, had approved alletment of 12,437,811 aquity shares to MIBLF pursuant 1o
such conversion at premium of Rs. 3.40 per share,

During the year 200718, International Finance Corporation (IFC) have exarcised their mght ta comvert Comaulsarily canvertible preference shares {CCPS) into equity shanes of the Company vide

thesr requast latter dated 26 May 2007, Board & directors In thair mesting held on 30 May 2017, had spproved allotmant of 5,970,149 equity shares to [FC pursusnt to such convessicn at
pramium of Re, 3.40 per share.

O
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27,

MNOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As at As at

— 21 March 2030
(Rupees in Lakhs) (Rupees in Lakhs)
Mon - current borrowings

Term loan from related parties {Unsecured)* 11.66 11.94

vehicle loans (Securad)*= 113.66 -
Less; Current maturities of vehicle lsans included under other financial liabilities (28.30) :

Total 97.02 11.94

“Group has obtained interest free loan without any fixed payment term from “Medical Management Company Limited® (subsidiary of Parent
Company).

“*During the year, the Company has taken vehicle loan on the fallawing terms:

Rate of interest ranging from 7.70% - B.00% p.a. -
Loan repayable on 48 monthly instalments =
The vehicle loan is secured by hypothecation ef respective assets (vehicles).

Other financial liabllites

Non-Current

Payable towards purchase of intangibie assets 586.77 B18.25
Total 586.77 B18.25
Provisions

Non-current

Provision for employee benefits

Pravision for gratuity (refer note 43} 1,831.29 1,680.57
Provizign for compensated absences 660.72 644,54
Total 2,492.01 2,325.11
Other non-current liabilities

Others 726 7.26
Total 7.26 7.26

Trade Payables

(1) total outstanding dues of micra enterprises and small enterprises (refer note 48) 268,42 134,47
(i} total gutstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 11,372.52 B,876.37
11,640.94 9,010.84
Other financial liabilites
Current
Depasits from customers 1,804.90 1,818.06
Current maturities of non-current borrowings (Refer note ) 28.30 -
Empioyee benefits payabie 1,486,465 1,657.57
Payahle towards purchase of property, plant and equipment, and Intangible assets 464.51 393.39
Liability against indemnification {refer note belaw)* 74.70 74.70
Payable to holding company (refer note 35) 12.47 =
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 0.72 -
Tatal 3,872.06 3,843.72

At the tme of acquisitlon of Piramal labs (SRL Diagnostics Private Limited), it was agreed that any charge relating to tax litigations before the
date of acquisition shall be indemnified to parent company. Accordingly, the amount paid by Piramal to SRL Limited (parent company}), has
been shown under liability against indemnification till tax litigations are settied.

o
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SAL LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
£ — e LTSULIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT.

Other current liabilities

Advance against assets held for sale
Advances from customers *

Statutory dues payables

Liability towards customer lovalty program®**
Deferred revenue (refer note 474)

Total

* includes advances from related party (refer note 39)
**The movemsant during the year Is as below :
Opening balance
Deferred during the year
Refeased to the Statement of Profit and Loss
Closing balance

Provisions

Provision for employee benefits
Fravision for gratuity (refer note 43)
Provisien for compensated absences
Provision for contigencies
Provigion for litigation =

Total

*The movement during the year is below :
Opening balance

Addition during the year

Paid during the year

Closing balance

* SAL Disgnostics Private Limited ("SALD') has disputed the coverage of Employees State
2005-06 for its Kolkata unit as “Pathlabs” were not covered under Employee State Insurance Corporation {ESIC). Pending settiement of matter,
provision Is recognised every year for the ESIC liability, The same will be paid once the matter is seftled.

As at
31 March 2021

As at
31 March 2020

(Rupees in Lakhs)

(Rupees in Lakhs}

- 30.00
B15.44 753.74
1,339.73 1,422.78
151.93 125.27
96.78 45.82
2,403.86 2,377.61
0.23 0.23
125.27 30.00
386.50 266.85

{359.84) {171.58)
151,93 125.27
288.15 265.54
247.97 231.30
159.69 154.04
695.81 651.28
154.04 143.65
5.65 10.39
159.69 154.04

Insurance Corporation (ESIC) for period prior to FY



SAL LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30.

31.

32.

33.

34,

35,

36,

Revenue from operations
Sale of services (refer note 474)
Other operating revenues
- Management fees
- Business support service
- Liabilities/provisiens no longer required written back
Total

Other incoma

Interest income earned on:

- Bank deposits

- Loans to subsidiaries

- Income tax refund

= Others

Exchange differences (net)

Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment [net)
Miscellaneous income

Total

Cost of materials consumed
Reagents, chemicals and consumables
Inventories at the beginning of the year
Add: Purchase during the year (net)

Less: Inventories at the end of the year
Total

Employee benefits expense

Salaries and wages

Share based payments to employees (refer note 48]
Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note 43)
Gratuity expense (refer note 43)

Staff welfare expenses

Tatal

Finance costs

Interest on:

- borrowings

- security depasit

- net defined benefit obligation (refer note 43)
- lease liability

- okhers

Others

Total

Depreciation and amortisation expense
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (refer note 40)
Amaortisation of intangible assets

Tatal

Other expenses

Paweer and fuel

Rent and hire charges
Rates and taxes

[nsurance

Rezpairs and maintenance:
- Plant and machinery

- Bulldings

- Others

Advertisernent and sales promaotion
Pastage and courler
Travelling and conveyance
Printing and stationery
Communication

Fees to collection centers

Legal and professional (refer note below for payment to auditors)

Professional fees to doctors

et foreign exchange loss

Corporate social responsibilty expenses (refer note 44)
Impairment loss on asset held for sale

Bad debts written off

Advances writhen off

Loss allowance for deposits and advances
Expected credit loss allowance (refer note 14)
Housekeeping expenses

Security services expenses

Miscellaneous expenses

Total

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
{Rupees in Lakhs) {Rupees in Lakhs)
102,117.87 100,020,79
792.28 1,006.36
102.36 i
494 B4 605,95

—___ 103,507.35

0163310

986.55 636,72
1,240.88 1,012.70
0.26 17.81
129,12 40.37
- 114.09
11.30 0.54
193.96 204.52
2,562.07 2,026.75
3,056.45 2,515.42
20,454,931 24,646,584
32,520.76 27,162.26
{3,758.77) (3,056.45)
28,761.99 24,105.81
22,474.34 23,101.85
(94.29) 149,33
1,295.25 1,376.48
345.95 265.04
328,25 361.20
24,349.51 25,253.590
4.33 1.28
40.38 95,24
96,51 94,79
630.26 683.76
139.64 122.01
267.74 275.17
1,179.26 1,273.13
2,458.10 2,206.36
2,069.21 2,067.14
679.22 1,399.37
5,206.53 5,762.87
1,503.41 1,775.43
1,452.15 1,424.16
266.07 634.68
229.12 159.70
1,425.48 1,380.62
114.48 82.31
336.80 32855
2,908.87 3,924.10
3,068.84 2,877.54
622.84 707.23
672.97 818.09
340.28 343,05
6,902.26 6,229.05
1,930.98 2,014 .44
6,802.54 7,741.38
82.82 -
29546 291,17
- 14.47
. 2.28
10.77 -
56,39 64,42
1,426,732 1,399,569
234.31 236,97
215.08 199,80
684,44 723.66
31,682.07 33,373.77

\_g:_,,.-n
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MNOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended
31 March 2021

Year endad
31 March 2020

{Rupees in Lakhs)

37. (a) Income taxes recognised in statement of profit and loss :

(Rupeas in Lakhs)

Current tax 4 078B.36 4,028.94
Deferred tax axpense 831.72 77768
Total 4,910.08 4,806.62
{b} Recognised in other comprehensive income section :
Taxn expense/ (income) related to items that will not be reclassified subsequently to 0.72 (77.60)
profit or loss
Total 0.72 (77.60)
(€} The income tax expense for the year reconcilied to the accounting profit as follows:
Profit before tax 18,034.61 13,363.60
Tax using Company's domestic tax rate @ 25.17% (31 March 2020 : 25.17%) 4,539.31 3,363.62
Tax effect of :
Non deductible expenses {net) 116.35 344,38
Intercompany eliminations - {300.03)
Share of profits in equity accounted investees (1,096,65) (168.11)
Differences in tax rates in foreign jurisdiction 248,10 347.89
Current year losses for which no deferred tax asset was recognised 51.84 52,59
Change in tax laws 68.30 .
Undistributed profits of subsidianes 982.83 -
Derecognition of deferred tax assat on tax losses incurred in prior years - 139.10
Reduction in tax rates . 1,117.80
Adjustment recognised In the current year in relation to the tax of prior years - 189.52)
Income tax expense recognised in consolidated statemant of profit and loss 4,910.08 4,B06.62
{d} Unrecognised temporary differences
Temporary differences relating to Investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures for
which deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised.
Undistribubed earnings
SRL Diagnostics Private Limited 5,907.26 5.379.10
SRL Diagnastics (Nepal) Private Limited 138.38 120.73
DORC SRL Diagnostics Privabe Limited 4,672.99 3,210.76
10,718.63 8,710.59
Unracognised deferred tax liabilities relating to the above temporary differences 2,697.88 2,192.46

Certain subsidiaries and joint ventures {(amount disclosed above represents Group's share) have undistributed earnings, which, if paid out
of dividends, would be subject to tax, An assessable temporary difference exists and no deferred tax liabllity has been recognised as the

Holdina Company is able to contral the timinas of distributions from these subsidiaries and ioint ventures.
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended Yaar ended
1 1 2
(Rupees in Lakhs) {Rupees in Lakhs)
38. Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic earnings per share in rupees (refer detalls below) 16,74 10.91
Dilyted eamnings per share in rupees (refer details below) 16.62 10.85

Baslc earnings per share

The earmings and weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of
basic earmings per share are as follows:

Earnings used in the calculation of basic Barming per share;
Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company 13,124.53 8,556.98

Weightad average number of equity shares for the purpose of basic EPS 78,425,542 78,425,542
Diluted earnings per share

The earings and weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of
diluted rarnings per share are as follows:

Eamnings used In the calculation of diluted earming per share;

Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company 13,124.53 8,556.98
The weighted average number of equity shares for the purpase of diluted earnings per 78,979,410 78,899,420
share

Reconciliation of weighted average number of equity shares used for the
purposa of diluted EPS with weighted average number of equity shares used in
the calculation of basic EPS :

Welghted average number of equity shares used in the calculgtion of basic eamings per 78,425 542 78,425,542
share

Shares deemed to be issued for no consideration in respect of:

- Employee stock options (numbers) 553,868 473,878
Weighted average number of equity shares far the purpase of diluted EFS 78,979,410 78,899,420




SRL LIMITED
39. Related party disclosures

A. Related parties where control exists :
(i} Ultimate holding Company
[HH Healthcare Berhad

{ii}) Enterprises having direct control over the Group
Fortis Healthcare Limited, halding company

(i1 Joint venture company

SRL Diagnostics (Mepal) Private Limited
DORC SRL Diagnostics Private Limited

B. Other related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the current and previous year:

1. Fellow subsidiaries
= Fortis C-DOC Healtheare Limited
= Escorts Heart Institute & Research Centre Limited
= Fortis Health Management Limitad
= Fartis Hospitals Limited
= Fortis Malar Hospitals Limited
- Hiranandani Healthcare Private Limited
= Medical Management Company Limited, BVI
= Mona Healthcare Investment Company Limited, BVI
= International Hospital Limited
= Fortis CS5R Faundation
= Birdie & Birdie Realtors Private Limited
= Continental Hespitals Private Limited
- Ravindranath GE Medical Associates Private Limited
= Bharat Insecticides Limited (from 17 September 2020)
= Centre for Digestive and Kidney Diseases {India) Private Limited

2. Enterprises owned or significantly controlled / influenced by subsidiary of holding/ultimate holding company
The Medical and Surgical Centre Limited
Lanka Hospltals Diagnostics (Pvt) Ltd
Apollo Gleneagles Hospital Limited
- Apollo Hospitals Enterprises Limited

3. Entities having a common director
Trivitron Health Care Private Limited {upto 19 May 2020)
Jacob ballas Capital India Private Limited

[ = Key Managerial Personnel
Mr. Anand K , Chief Executive Officer (from 5 August 2020)
Mr. Arindam Haldar , Chief Executive Officer {upto 4 August 2020)
Mr. Saurabh Chadha, Chief Financial Officer {upto 31 December 2019)
Mr. Mangesh Shrikant Shirodkar, Chief Financial Officer {from 132 February 2020
Mr. Sumit Goel, Company Secretary

Sy
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D. Transactions with related parties
Mature of transaction / Name of the Related party

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
(Rupeas in Lakhs) {Rupees in Lakhs)
(a) Rendering of services:
Escorts Heart Institute & Research Centre Limited 1,336.58 1,550.08
Fortis C-DOC Healtheare Limited 59.83 98.73
Fortis Health Management Limited 135.56 160.38
Fartis Healthcars Limited 1,479.12 1,501.54
Fartis Hospitals Limited 8,843.01 9,182.38
Fortis Malar Hospitals Limited 276.52 471.96
Hiranandani Healthcare Private Limited 627.90 718,28
SRL Diagnostics {Nepal) Private Limited 176.43 275.25
DORC SRL Diagnostics Private Limited 101.41 192.16
International Hospital Limited 120.01 136.74
Apollo Gleneagies Hospital Limited 56.25 70.79
Apallo Hospitals Enterprises Limited 43,23 73.52
Lanka Hospitals Diagnostics {Pvt) Ltd §5.07 56,97
The Medical and Surgical Centre Ltd e 3.50
Centre for Digestive and Kidney Diseases {India) Private Limited 18.73 -
Bharat Insecticides Limited 1.54 -
—_—13341,09 1445228
Othar income:
DDRC SRL Diagnostics Private Limited 126.00 126.00
(b) Other Services
(i} Cost of test outsourced
Fortis Hospltals Limited 41,22 24,95
Fartis Healthcare Limited 0.23 .90
Fortis Health Management Limited 427 -
Escorts Heart Institute & Research Centre Limited 0.28 0.13
DDRC SRL Diagnostics Private Limited - 54.45
(i) Repair and maintenance
Trivitron Health Care Private Limited - 1.42
(iii} CSR expanses
Fortis CSR Foundation = 291,17
— T e 76,02
{c) Reimbursement of expenses to:
Escorts Heart [nstitute & Research Centre Limited 121.92 111.06
Fartis Healthcare Limited 19.16 19.88
Fortis Hospitals Limited 64.57 42.92
Hiranandani Healthcare Private Limited 65,25 108.29
SRL Diagnostics {Nepal) Private Limited 9.60 12,72
DORC SAL Diagnastics Private Limited 15.34 23,37

295.84 318.24

(d) Reimbursement of expenses from:

Escorts Heart Institute & Ressarch Centre Limited 11.80 11.91
Fortis Healthcare Limited 11.23 12,14
Fartis Health Management Limited - 1.49
Fortis Hospitals Limited 184.42 182.06
Hiranandani Healthcare Private Limited 244.02 226.00
Fortis Malar Hospitals Limited 14.02 15.63
SAL Diaonostics (Mepal) Private Limited 2.34 30,35




(e) Remuneration to key managerial personnel

(f

(@)

(h)

(i)

§Y]

(k)

n

Salary and wages

Mr. Anand K, Chief Executive Officar
Mr. Arindam Haldar, Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Saurabh Chadha, Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Mangesh Shrikant Shiredkar, Chiel Financial Officer

Mr. Sumit Goel, Company Secratary

MNote: The remuneration to the key managearial
does not include the provisions made for arat
whale. The amount dees not include accrual recorded for

Purchase of reagents and consumables
Fortis Hospitals Limited

Fortis Health Management Limited
Hiranandanl Healthcare Private Limited
Trivitron Health Care Private Limited

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Trivitron Health Care Private Limited

Sale of property, plant and eguipment
Mr. Saurabh Chadha

Trade receivables converted into loan
Fortis Hospikals Limited

Escorts Heart Institute and Research Limited
Hiranandani Healthcare Private Limited

Loans repaid

Fartis Healtheare Limited

Fortis Hospitals Limited

Escorts Heart Institute and Research Limited
Hiranandanl Healthcare Private Limited

Interest received

Fortis Hospitals Limited

Escorts Heart Institute and Ressarch Limited
Hiranandani Healthcare Private Limited

Dividend income
DORC SRL MMagnostics Private Limitad

(m} Repayment received of deposits

Birdig & Birdle Realtors Private Limited

personnel includes gratuity

SRL LIMITED

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
{Rupees in Lakhs) (Rupees in Lakhs)
138,32 -

244,45 321.04

- 94.04

78.27 16.37

19.16 19.98

w—m

paid, compensated absences paid, incentives and
compensated absences, as they are determined on an
Emploves Share Based Payments,

share based payments but
actuanal basis for the company as a

14,41 19.34
1.34 2.07
0.29 0.60

17.25 120,65

33.29 142,66
- 30.68

= 30,68
2,40
E 2.40
= 11,100.00
2,800.00
2,100.00
- 16,000.00
1,526.00 Z,082.00
388,00 528,00
369.00 390.00
2,1283.00 3,000.00
851,68 702,54
217.19 177.24
162.01 132.93

— 134088 _ 101270

2,800.00 -
2,800.00 -
- 80.00
2 80.00




E. Balances outstanding at the vear end:

(a)

(b}

(€]

(d)

(e}

(f

3]

(h)

Trade Receivables

Escorts Heart Institute & Research Centre Limited
Fortis C-DOC Healthcare Limited

Fartis Health Management Limited

Fartis Healthcare Limitad

Fortis Hospitals Limited

Fortis Malar Hospitals Limited

Hiranandani Healthcare Private Limited

SRL Diagnostics (Nepal) Private Limited

DORC SAL Diagnostics Private Limited

Mena Healthcare Investment Company Limited, BV
International Hosoital Limited

Apolio Gleneaales Hospital Limited

Continental Haspitals Private Limited

Ravindranath GE Medical Assoclates Private Limited
Apolle Hospitals Enterprises Limited

Lanka Hospitals Diagnastics {Pvt) Lid

Bharat Insecticides Limited

SRL LIMITED

Centre for Digestive and Kidnev Diseases (India) Private Limited

Trade payable and other financial liabilities
Fartis Healthcare Limited
Trivitron Health Care Private Limited

Interest accrued/ receivable

Fortis Hospitals Limited

Escorts Heart Institute and Research Limited
Hiranandani Healthcare Private Limited

Borrowings
Medical Management Company Limited

Loan recelvable

Fortis Hospitals Limited

Escorts Heart Institute and Research Limited
Hiranandani Healthcare Private Limited

Advances recaverable

SRL Diagnostics {Nepal) Pvt, Lid.
Fortis Healthcare Limited

Hiranandani Healthcare Private Limited
Lanka Hospitals Diagnastics (Pvt) Ltd

Advance from customers
Jacob ballas Capital India Private Limited

Expected credit loss allowance
Mena Healthcare Investment Company Limited, BVI

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
(Rupees in Lakhs) (Rupees in Lakhs)
505,58 941,72
277.29 267.33
13.98 .64
319.53 362,35
1,237.92 1,800.70
3177 51.77
T98.17 446,63
152,58 218,61
7.62 20.72
254,13 260,17
20.33 10.85
20.84 15.92
- 0.02
0.12 0.12
11,23 18.86
12,48 1.25
0.13 -
s =
26,72 1.46
- 0.43
-1 a9
185.18 232,37
46,83 56,04
34.01 42,05

_mﬂ

11.56 11.94
366 11,93

7.492.00 9,018.00

1,884.00 2,272.00

1,341.00 1,710.00
—_— 1071700 _________13.000.00

B.13 29,856

- 22,60

= 8.78

1.97 3.97
12,10 65.21

0.23 0.23
0.23 .23

254.13 260,17
254,13 _260.17




Note:-

{i} The Group has entered into an agreement with one of its customers whereby Rs. 160,21 lakhs {31 March 2020 Rs, 160.21 lakhs) is recoverable, Fortis
group has guaranteed to pay on behalf of customer, which in turn will be settled against amount payable by Fortis group to customer. The
management expects to recover the balance amount in normal course of business and accordingly no provision has been considered NaCessary.

Ui} Closing balances have not been disclosed in this note for the parties which cease to be related party during the yvear.

F. Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

The sale to and purchase from related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactions. Outstanding balances at
year end are unsecured, and interest free and settlement acours in cash. For the year ended 31 March 2021, the group has recorded Rs, 254.13 Lakhs
(31 March 2020 Rs. 260.17 Lakhs) as provision towards receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties. This assessment is undertaken sach
financial year through examining the financial assumptions and the market in which the related parties operates.
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NOTE MI E DA MNA L EN

40. Leases

41.

As lessea
Operating Leases
The group has obtained lab premises,

affice premises, godowns and guest houses on aperating lease arrangements, The lease

terms varies fram 11

months to 15 years, renewable at the aption of the group. There are escalation clauses in some of the lease agreements that are generally linked to

Inflatian. There are no restrictions imposed by the lease arrangements.

(i)

({1] Lease liabilities
Maturity analysis - contractual undiscounted cash flows
Less than one year
One te five years
More than five years
Total undiscounted lease liabilities at the end of the year
Leasa liabilities
Current
MNon-current
(iiil)  Amounts recognised In profit or loss
(Expenses)/income arising from leases:
Interest on lease liabilities
Expenses relating to short-term leases
Expenses relating to leases of low-value assets
Expenses relating to variable lease payments not Included in the measurement of lease
liabilities
Income from sub-leasing right-af-use assets presented in ather income
(iv)  Amounts recognised in statement of cash flows
Total cash outflow for lease liabilities (includes interest of Rs.630.26 Lakhs {31 March 2020 :
R=.683.76 Lakhs))
As Lessor

Right-of-use assets

Particulars

Balance at the beginning of the year
Additions to right of use assets
Depreciation charge for the year
Derecognition of right of use assets
Exchange translation adjustrments
Balance at the end of the year

Operating lease
Rental income fram premises subleased recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Commitments

Commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment

The Group has other eommitments,
Services,

As at
31 March 2021

Az at
31 March 2020

(Rupees in Lakhs)
6,243.61
1,716.02
(2,069.21)
(44B.63)
{10.01)
5,431.77

As at
31 March 2021

(Rupees in Lakhs)
7.360.28
1,755 48
(2,067.14)
(798.32)
{6.69)
6,243.61

As at
31 March 2020

(Rupees in Lakhs)

2,108.51
4,105,98
339.75
6,554.34

1,726.73
3,970.57

As at
31 March 2021

(Rupees in Lakhs)

2,269.44
5,218.12
410.14
7.,897.70

1,715.86
4,769.17

As at
31 March 2020

(Rupees in Lakhs)

(630.26)
(B78.73)

{573.42)
26.30

As at
31 March 2021

(Rupees in Lakhs)

(683.76)
(904.83)

(519.33)
31.87

As at
31 March 2020

(Rupees in Lakhs)

2,481.71

As at
31 March 2021

(Rupees in Lakhs)

2,350.54

As at
31 March 2020

(Rupees in Lakhs)

(Rupees in Lakhs)

31 March 2021

26.30 31.87
26.30 —=%
—eeee————————————
As at Az at

31 March 2020

(Rupees in Lakhs)

471.45

N2

(Rupeas in Lakhs)

1,436.75

far purchase/sales orders which are issued after considering requirements per operating cycle for purchase / sale of
employee’s benefits, The Group does nat have any long term commitments or material non-cancellable contractual commitments) contracts.
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42. Contingent liabilities :

(i) Claims against the Company, disputed by the Company, not acknowledged as debt (In addition, refer daims assessed as
contingent liability described in Note 54,55, and 56) :

Particulars As at

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Income tax 25,354.26 24,193.32
Medical related 5,249.45 5. 166.45
Service tax B1.44 81,44
Total 30,685.15 29,441.21

(i) The Group has received a daim of Rs. 935.00 Lakhs from an ex-employee alleging certain dues payable by the Group to him in respect ta his
variable pay, provident fund and ESOPs. The ex-employee has also filed a similar claim of Rs. 1,923.04 Lakhs on the Parent Company [Faortis
Healthcare Limited). During the previous year, the claimant has filed a petition with Natienal Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) and revised his
claim ameunt ta Rs, 3,637.80 Lakhs. The Group has filed the respanse to the petition on merits submitting that the Petition is not maintainable
either under facts or law. The matter is currently pending with NCLT.

{iii) ©n 28 February 2019, a judgment of the Supreme Court of India interpreting certain statutory defined contribution obligations of employees
and employers (the "India Defined Contribution Obligation®™) altered historical understandings of such obligations, extending them to cover
additional portions of the employee's income to measurs abligations under employees Provident Fund Act, 1952, There j= significant uncertainty
as to how the liability should be calculated as It s impacted by multiple variables, including the periad of assessment, the application with
respect to certain current and former employees and whether interest and penalties may be assessed. As such, the Group has been lagally
advised not to consider that there is any probable obligations for periods prior to date of afaresaid judgment.

Additionally, the Group is involved in other disputes, lawsuits, claims, governmentsl andfor regulatory inspections, inquiries, investigations and
proceedings, including commercial matters that arise frem time to time in the ordinary course of business,

The Group believes that nene of the above matters elther individually or in aggregate, are expected to have material adverse effect an its financial
statements. The cash flows in respect of above matters are determinable anly on receipt of judgements/decisions pending at various stages/forums.
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43.
i)

(i}

Employee benefits plans
Defined contribution plans

The Group makes contribution towards employess' provident fund, employees’ state insurance plan scheme
Under the schemes, the Group is required o cantribute a specified percentage of payroll cost, as specified
Re.1,295.25 Lakhs (31 March 2020 - Rs.1,376.48 Lakhs) during the year as expense towards contribution t

Prawvident fund

Employees’ state insurance scheme
Superannuation fund

Labour welfare fund

Total

Defined benefit plans
Gratuity

The Group has a defined benefit gratuity plan, whersin every employee who has completed five

and superannuation fund an behalf of the emloyees,
in the rules of the scherme, The Group has recognised

o these plans.,
Year ended Year ended
1 Ma rch
(Rupees in Lakhs) (Rupees in Lakhs)

1,155.49 1,181.88
139.19 192.26
- 1.77
0.57 Q.57

1,295.25 1,376.48

¥ears or mare of service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days

salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service subject to & maximum limit of Rs. 20,00 Lakhs {31 March 2020 : s, 20.00 Lakhs} in terms of the
provisions of Gratuity Act, 1072, The gratulty plan is funded for it's subsidiary SRL Diagnostics Private Limited and unfunded for SRL Limited and other
subsidiaries. Accordingly, the discosure below related to plan assets and liabilities are only related to those of SRL Diagnostics Private Limited,

These plans typically exposed the Group to actuarial risks such as: investment risk, Interest rate risk, longevity risk and salary risk.

Investment risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated
reference to market yields at the end of the reparting period on gove

mment Bonds.

Interest risk A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability; however, this will
increase in the return on the plan's debt instruments.

Longevity risk
of plan participants both during and after their em
participants will increase the plan's liability,

Salary risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liabilley Is calculated by reference to

participants. As such, an increase in the sala
The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial assumptions were as fo

The following tables summarise the compaenents of net benefit expense recogrsed in the Statement

the balance sheet for the gratuity plan.

Discount rate
Expected rate of salary increase
Mortality rate

Emplovee turnover {attrition rate)
Upto 30 vears

31-45 years

45 years and above

Het employes benefits expense

Current service cost

Total gratuity expenses included in employee benefit expenses {note 33)
Interest cost on benefit obligation included in finance cost

Recognised in statement of profit and loss
Remeasurements on the net defined benefit liability :

- Actuarial (gain)/lesses arising fram changes in demographic assumptions

- Actuarial {gain)/flosses arising from changes in financial assumptions

- Actuarial (gain)/ losses arising from experience adjustments

« Return on plan assets (excluding amounts includad In net interest eRpense)

Recognised in other comprehensive income

Tatal

The current service cost and the net interest expense for the year are included in the
the Statement of profit and loss. The remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability i

using a discount rate which is determined by

be partially offsst by an

The present value of the defined benefit plan lizhility is caloulated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality
ployment, An increase In the life expectancy of the plan

the future salaries of plan
ry of the plan participants will increase the plan’s lability,

of Profit and Loss account and the amaunts recognised in

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
{Rupees in Lakhs) {Rupees in Lakhs)
5.65% p.a. 5.55% p.a.
6.50% p.a. 5.50% p.a.

Indian Assured Lives
2012-14 Ultimate

22% - 27% p.a.
18% - 20% p.a,
13% - 16% p.a,

Year ended
31 March 2021

Indian Assured Lives
2012-14 Ultimate

22% - 27% p.a.
18% - 20% p.a.
13% - 16% p.a.

Year anded
31 March 2020

{Rupees in Lakhs)

{Rubees in Lakhsa)

345.96 265.04
345.96 265.04
95.91 04.79
447,87 35953
= 22.43
{11.47) 201.41
22.94 40.64
(7.41) 5.61
4&_ E?ﬁ.ﬂ?
% 638.9

N

‘Employee benefits expense’ and 'Finance costs' line itern respectively in
5 included in other comprehensive income,
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The amount included in the Balance Sheet arising from the Group's obligation in respect of its defined benefit mpans is as follows:

Defined benefit abligation
- Ag per actuarial valuation for Holding company and Indian subsidiarias
Less: Fair value of plan assets

Employee redated provisions of SRL Disgnostics FZ-LLC#
Net defined banefit liability

As at
31 March 2021

As at
31 March 2020

(Rupees in Lakhs)

{Rupees in Lakhs)

# Dbligation has been estimated by the Management basis the contractual liabilities as per laws applicable in United Arab Emirates

Classification of net defind benefit liability as per actuarial valuation

Met defined benefit liability (Nan- current)
Met defined benefit lability (current)

Movement in the present value of the defined benefit obligation is as follows:
Opening defined benefit obligation (excluding lability of foreign subsidiary)
Current service cost

Interest expenses

Remeasurement losses:

- Actudrial losses arising from changes in demographic assumptions

- Actuarial losses/{gains) arising from changes in financial assumptions

- Actuarial {gains)/ losses arising from experience adjustments

Bemefit payments

- Benefit payments lrom plan

- Benefit payments from employar

Transfer in

Closing defined benefit obligation {(excluding liability of foreign subsidiary)

Add: Closing liability of foreign subsidiary
Closing defined benefit obligation

Changes in the present value of the plan asset are as follows:
Opening fair value of plan assets

Interest income

Remeasurement gain/ (losses):

- Return on plan assets (excluding interest income)
Contributions from the emplaoyer

- Contributions from the employer

- Direct benefit payments from employer

Benefit payments from plan assets

Benefit payments from employer

Closing falr value of plan assets

Each year, the management of SRL Diagnostics Private Limited reviews the level of funding in the gratuity plan.

strategy.

2,283.33 2,000.22
{337.61) {322.82)
1|EE:II IITA-?.ﬂ
173.72 199,11
ﬁl 19.44 I‘E“.Sl
1,831.29 1,680.57
288.15 265,94
— 12108 104651
Year ended Year ended

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

(Rupees in Lakhs)

(Rupees in Lakhs)

2,070.22 1,638,232
299,32 243.45
114,82 117.32

- 22.43
{11.47) 201.41
22,94 49,64
(14.13) (10.10)
(159.95) (196.33)
1.58 4,18
2,283.33 2,070.22
173.72 199.11
2,457.05 2,269.33

322.82 300.97

17.90 2253
7.41 (5.61)
361 15.03

36.07 56.51

{14.13) {10.10)
{36.07) {59.51}

—_— e 33283

Such a review includes asset-Fability matching

The plan assets of the subsidiary company SRL Diagnostics Private Umited as on the Balance sheet date are fully invested in Insurer Managed Funds, The

details of investrnents maintained by LIC are not available and therefare have not been disclosed.

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined obligation are discount rate, expected salary
analysis below have been determined based on regsonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurrin

hodding all other assumptions constant,

N8y

increase and attrition rate, The sensitivity
g at the end of the reporting period, while
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
{Rupees in Lakhs) (Rupees in Lakhs)
If the: discount rate is 100 basis paints higher 2,174,43 1,971.34
If the discount rate is 100 basis points lower 2,402.97 2,178.94
If the expected salary growth increases by 1% 2,358.89 2,174 .48
If the expected salary growth decreases by 1% 2,175.69 1,972.86
If attrition rate increases by 1% 2,273.68 2,061.00
If attrition rate decreases by 1% 2,293.43 2,079.92

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in
assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.
There was no change In the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior vears.

The Group expects Lo make a contribution of Rs. 600,95 Lakhs (31 March 2020¢ Re.601.44 Lakhs} to the defined benefit plans during the next financial year.

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit abligation as at 31 March 2021 is 5 years (31 March 2020: § Years),

The defined benefit plans shall mature after year end 31 March 2021 as follows:

Expacted total benefits payments As at As at

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

{Rupees in Lakhs) {Rupees in Lakhs)
Year 1 451.10 411.87
Year 2 355.19 330.31
Year 3 334.75 284.27
Year 4 280.95 271.92
Year 5 244.29 217.87
Next 5 years 837.03 T45.80

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take into sccount the inflation, seniority, promatien and other relevant factors, such
as supply and demand in the employment market.

{Rupees in Lakhs)

Experience adjustments As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Experience adjustment on plan ligbilites - loss 22.894 45, a4

Corporate social responsibility

As per section 135 of the Companles Act, 2013 and the rules therein, the Group is required to spend at least 2% of the average net profit of past three VEars
towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR). Detalls of the CSR expenses, as certified by Management, are as follows:

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
{Rupees in Lakhs) (Rupees in Lakhs)

Balance to be spent as per previous year {a) - .
Amount required to be spent for the current year (B} 295,46 291,17
Gross amount reguired to be spent (A+B) 295.46 291.17
Amaount spent during the year (note 36) 295.46 291.17
Balance unspent at the end of the year = -
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45B.

Financial Instruments

Capital Managamant

The Group manages its capital to ensurg that Group will be able to continue as poing concern. The Group's managemeant réviews the capital structure of the Group on periodic basis, As
part of this review, the management considers the cost of capital and the risks associated with sach class of capital. The Cagpital structure of the Group consists of net debe (bormowings

35 dezakied in notes and offset by cash and bank balances) and total eguity of the Group. The Group manages its capital structurg and makes adjustments in the light of changes in
acanomic envirgnment and the requisements af the financial covanants. The Group is not subject to any axternally imposed capital requirements.

The Gearing ratio at end of reparting pericd was as fallows:-

As Bt A5 at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Deatt (i) 125.32 11.94
Cesh and cash equivalent (ke 15) (22,633.08) {3,917.21)
EBank balances other than cash & cash equivalent (note 16) [13,268.05) (7, E77.75)
Nat Dabt (A) [35,??5.!11 :!QIE.E‘PI
Total equity (B) 131,138.22 118,053,086
Met debt to aquity ratio (A/B) Hil il
{1} Debt is defined as long-term and short-term borrowings as described in note 22 and 27,

(Rupees in Lakhs)
Fair valus measurement Carrying vaiue

Notas A5 at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Financial assots
Meagured at amortited cost
Loans - mon current b} 973,44 1,054.89
Other financial as$ats - non current® ] 16.66 B,205.02
Trade Recervablas (a2} 14,287.35 14,505,28
Cazh and bank balances (a) 22,633.08 391721
Bank balances other than abowve (a) 13,268.0% 7.277.79
Loans - current™ (&) 11,133.55 13,599.35
Othar financial assats - current (&) SBL. 76 637.51
Total 62,903.85 49‘1!}?.12
Financial liabilitins
Measured at amortised cost
Borrowings : non-current == b} 97.02 11.94
Lease Liabilities - non current {e) 3,970.57 4,769.17
Other financial liabdlities : non-current (B} 585,77 B18.25
Leasa Liabdlities - currant ic) 1,726.73 1,715,856
Trade payables (a} 11,640.94 9,010.84
Other financial Kabllities - current == (&) 3,872.08 3,943.72
Total Z!F!H.E 20,268.78

* Loans include interest bearing loans to fallow subsidiaries given at market rate of interest. Other financial assets inciudae Interest bearing bank deposits.

** Borrowings include Interest bearing loans taken at market rate of intarast fram Banks and Financial Institutions.

The following methods / assumptions were used to estimate the Fair values:

(a) Fair valuation of financial assets and liabiities with short tarm maturities Is considered a5 approximate to respective carrying amount due to the short term maturities of these

(k) Falr valuation of non-current financial assets and lfabliities has bean disclosed to be same &s carmyng value &8 thers is no significant difference between carrying value and fair vaiue.

(€} Fair value measurament of lease liabilites is not reguined.
There are no financial instruments which are valued under category Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3

Financial risk managemant objectives and Policies

The Group's financial assets include trade recervables, cash and cash eguivalents and other financial assets that are derlved from its operations. The Group's principal financial Habdities
comgrise trade payables, ather payables and barrowings. The main purpose of these financial labiiities 15 to finance the Group's operation. The Group has exposure bo the fallawing risk
arising from financial instrumants.

{a) Credit risk

(b} Market risk

{c) Liquiditty risk

The Greun's board of directors manages the financial risk of the Company through internal risk report which analyse exposure by magnitude of risk,

(a) Cradit risk

Credit risk Is the rigk of financial loss to the Group iF a customer or counter party to a financial instrument fails Lo et it's contractual obligation and arises principally for the Group's
recalvable frorm customers, An impairmant analysis |s performed at each reparting date on an individual basis for major customers, The Group holds certain amount as colfateral in form
of security deposit against certain class of recehvable (primarily includes recaivable fram collection centre). The Group's EMposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual
characteristics and credit worthiness of each customer, Further refar note 14 for a summary of Group's most significant customers and details on provision for expected credit loss,

The: Group carries other financial assets such as balances with banks, security depogits, loans, interest accrued on deposits, advances, etc. Based on historical experienca, the Group does

nat expect any significant risk of default, The Group's maxirmum exposure o credit risk for each of the above categories of financial assets is thair carrying valees as at the reporting
dates.

o -




(b)) Market risk

Market risk is the risk of loss of future arnings, risk of lods due to change In interest rates, falr values or future cash fiows that may result from a change In the price of firancial
Jnrtkrurrmt- The value of & financial instrument may change as a result of changes In the interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates, and other market changes that affect market
risk sensitive instrumernts,

Markat risk includas:
{ Foreign currency risk
(i) Interest rabe risk
(1) Qthar price risk

(i) Forelgn currency risk

The Group has Mmited exposure from foreign currency risk due to limeted international Operations. The Group hes not taken any derivative contracts to hedge the exposure. Exchange
rate exposures are managed within approved palicy parameters.

The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currancy denominated manetary assats and monetary llabllites &t the end of the reporting year are as follows:

As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020

Currency {Rupees in Convarsion Amount in (Rupaes in Conversion Amount In
Lakhs) rate foreign currency Lakhs) rabe foreign currency

({in Lakhs) {in Lakhs)
Trade receivables usp 605,47 73,24 B.27 517.42 75.10 GBS
Cash balances AED 1.09 19.94 0.05 1.12 20,44 0.05
EuRD™ 0.01 85.96 0.00 0.01 83.04 000
SGD* 0.19 54.33 0.00 0.18 52.68 0.00
usp 1.43 73.24 0.02 1.18 69.32 .02
Adwancs from customars uso 70.71 73.24 0.97 B5.76 75.10 0.88
ELRD 0.50 85.96 .01 D.459 B3.04 0.01

* Amount in foreign currency not presented in the financial year 2020-21 and 2019-20 due to rounding aff.

Forelgn currency sensitivity

The fallowing table details the Groug's sensitivity to @ 10% increase and decrease in the Rupess against the refevant foreign currencies. 10% is the sansitivity rate used when reparting
foreign currency risk internally bo key mansgement personnel and TERFESANIS Management's assessmant of the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity
analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at the peried end for a 10% change in foreign currency rates. A positive
number below Ingicates an increase in profit or equity where the Rupes strengthens 109 against the relevant currency, For a 10% waakening of the Rupee against the relevant
currency, there would be a comparable impact on the prafit ar equity and the balances below would be negative.

L
Currency 2020-21 2019-20

10% increase | 10% decrease | 10% Increase 10% decreass
Trade Recaivable
Uso 60,55 (60,55) 51.74 (51.74)
Cash balances
AED 0,11 (0.11) 0.11 {0.11)
EURO= - - ¥ -
SGD .0z {0.02) 0.02 [0.02)
uso 0.14 {0.14) 0.12 (0.12)
Advance fram customars
uso o7 (7.07) 6.58 (6.58)
EURD 0.05 {0.05) 0.05 (0.05)
Impact on profit/ (loss) for tha year and 53.70 {53.70) 45.36 (45.36)
equity

* Amount not presented in the financial year 2020-21 and 2019-20 due to rounding off.

In management's opinion, the ssnsithity analysis s unrepresentative of the inherent foresgn exchange risk because the exposure at the end of the reporting period does not reflect the
exposure during the year,

(0} Interest rate risk

The Group Is not exposed to interest rate risk because the Group has borrowed funds at fixed intarest rates. As on 31 March 2021, the Group has given loans to fallow subsidiaries at
fixed Interest rate which the Group resets at reguiar intervals basis movement in market rates, Hence, a change In interest rate risk does nat have a material impact on the Group's
financial statements in relation ta fakr value of financial Insbruments,

(i) Other price risk
Tha Group's investmants are in joint venture companies and are held for Srategic purposes rathar than for trading purposes,

N



(c) Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Groug will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligation associated with it's financlal liabilities that are setttad by delivering cash. The Group's ultirmate
respansibility for liguidity risk management rests with the beard of directors, which has established an appropriate Mguidity risk management framework of the Group's short-torm,
mediem-term and long-term funding and liquidity management requiremants. Tha Group manages liguidity risk by maintaining adeguate reserves, banking faciiities and reserve
borrowing faciities, by continugusly monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assels and labilities. Note given below sets out datalls of
anditional undrawn facllities that the Group has at its disposal to further reduce liguidity risk,

The Group's principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash squivalent and cash flow that is generated from operations. In addition, the Group has secured funding facilities which can be
dréwn bo maet short term financial nesds. The Group management manibors raliing forecast of Group's liquidity requirement to ensure it has sufficient cash to meet operational need
while maintaining sufficient headroom on It's undrawn committed borrowing facility at all times o that the Group does not breach the borrowing limits or covenants,

Financial arrangaement:
The Growp has access bo the following undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of the reparting period.

(Rupees in Lakhs)
As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
SRL Limited Sanctioned limit  Limit utilised  Sanctionad limit Limit utilised
Cash credit Facility 200.00 - 2,400.00
Latter of credit 75.00 - 75.00 -
Bank guarantes 450,00 133,32 450,00 177.27
725.00 13332 292500 17727
SAL Diagnostics Private Limited
Cash credit faclity, Letter of credit, Bank guarantee (] - 1,500,00 -
= = 1,500.00 -
Tatal 725.00 133.32 4,425.00 177.27

The following tables detail the Group's remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative finandal liabllities with agreed repayment pericds. The tables have besn drawn up based an
the undiscounted cash Mows of financial Kabikities based on the eariiest date on which the Greup can be reguired to pay,

(Rupees in Lakhs)
Particulars 0-1 year Bayond 1 yaar Total Amount Carrying Amount

31 March 2021
Non Interest bearing Instruments

Barrowings - 11.66 11.66 11.66
Lease lighilities - non current - 4,445.73 4,445.73 3,970.57
Fayable on purchase of plant and equipment - non-current - 586.77 586.77 SBE. 7Y
Lease Mabllities - current 2,108.61 - 2,108.61 1,726.73
Trade payables 11,640,949 - 11,540.94 11,640.94
Depesit from customers 117.44 - 117.44 117,44
Empioyes benefits payable 1,486.46 - 1,486.45 1,486.46
Payalle on purchase of plant and equipment - current 464,51 - 464,51 464.51
Liability against indemnification 74.70 - 74.70 74.70
Payable to holding company 12.47 - 12,47 12.47
Fixad Interast baaring instrumeants

Deposit from customears 1,731.83 - 1,731.83 1,687 .46
Borrowings 36.55 96,94 133.49 114,38

17,673.52 5,141.10 212,814.62 21,894.09

31 March 2020
Non Interest baaring instruments

Bormowings = 11.94 11.94 11.94
Lease liabilities - non current - 5,628.26 5,628.26 4, 769,17
Payable on purchase of plant and equipment - non-current - B18.25 B18,25 B1B.25
Lieasm labliities - current 2,269,444 1,269.44 1,715.86
Trade payvables 9,010.91 - 9,010.91 2.010.91
Depost from customers 130.98 . 130.98 130.98
Empioyee benefits payable 1,657.57 . 1,657.57 1,657.57
Payabie on purchase of plant and equspmant - current 393.38 - 393.368 393.38
Liabllity against indemnification T4.70 - 74.70 T4.70
Fixed interest bearing instruments

Deposit from customers 1,768.31 - 1,786.31 1,667.06

15,325.29 645845 21,783.75 20,269.85

The Group expects to meet its other obligations from cperating cash fows and proceeds of maturing financial assets,

N



SHL LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMEMTS
sl —— P STATEMENTS

48. Employes Stock Option Plans

The SAL Limited ("SRL") has provided share-based payment schama (o the ehgible employees and then directors of SAL, its subsidiary (SAL Diagnostics Private Limitad), Fortis Healthcare Limited
{Parent Company) and RHC Halding Private Limited. The shareholders of SAL granted approval b “Super Raligare Labaratorios Limited Employea Stack Opton Plan 2009° and “SRL Limited Employes
Stack Optian Scheme 2013, SAL nas granted these aptions under Equity Sattlement rrsthod and there sre ne canditians for vesting other than continued employment with the respective company,
Details of thase schemes are as follows ;

Schem ESOP 2008 2013
Date of Board Approval 22 Rugust 2009 23 August 2013
Dare of Sharehoides's spprovel 17 August 2009 20 Septamber 2013
Method of Settlement (Cas it Equity Lo Equity
Grant I* Grant 1] Grant III Grant IV Grant V Grant VI Grant VIT
Date of grant 22 August 3009) 30 Saptember 2013 2 November 3015 B November 2016 23 March 2017 & May 2017 2 fug 2017
Musmber of pgtions granted 1,517,470 200,000 545937 75,000 125,000 25,000 25,000
Mumber of cptions cancelledg B75,736 134,000 724,437 75000 125,000 25,000 -
Murnizer of aptions exarcised 154,716 66,000 - - - . -
Nurmber of options nat yet vestad - - - - - v 16,667
Rurnber of aptions nat yet sercised 487,018 - 271,500 - = - 8,333
Westng Period 22 August 2009 ta| 30 Septernber 2016( 2 Nowvemnser 2018 ta] 7 Movernbar 2019 ]| 22 March 2020 to 22 26 May 2020 to 28| 02 August 2020 to 02
21 August 2012 to 30 Septernbe 1 Navember 2020/ 7 Movernber 2021 March 2022 Mary 2022 August 20232
2018
Exarcise Pemod up o ** 21 August 3019|  29 Saptember 2022, 1 Navember 20232 1 Mowvemnber 2027 1 November 2022 1 Mowember 2022 1 Movember 2022
Grant valug 40 201 418 674 674 674 &74
The details of activity undar the Man have boen summarizes below:
As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Number of Options Woelghted Average Number of Options  Waeighted Averaga
exercise price axarcise price
Quitstanding at the baginning of the vear 1,031,378 292.11 1,072,309 193.34
Grantad during tha year - - - =
Weasted during the yaar - - - -
Exercised during tha yaar - - - B
Forfeited) Cancellad during the year 247 860 600,11 40,931 324,38
Cuistanding &t tha end of the year T83.518 194.68 1,031,378 X211
Exgrcisable option at the end of the year 766,851 1B4.28 503,874 40,00
‘Weighted average rermaining life {years)=* - 1.32
Rangs of exarcise price 40-674 A-574

¥ The compgany has exanded the exerose period of all utstanding options (Grant [, Grant I11 and Grant VII) till a future event oceurs {i-e. exit of existing private equity investars or any other Esting
evant]. Further, &5 per the revised terms, employess due to retire or getting superannuated praspactivaly will also be antitied to exercise the aptions before the future event. A there i5 no fixed time
lirmit for future event, weighted avaraga ramaining life of such opthans has not baen disclosed.,

There ane na options granted o clerent year. Black-Schales Optien Pricing Mogdel has been used for camputing the weighted average fair value congidering tha following inputs:

Particulars Grant IT Grant I1I Grant IvV- W Grant VI~ VII
‘esting Schedule 100%, 1008 100% 100%:
Sock Price {5) 201 428 674 G674
Ewercise Price (X3 201 428 674 674
Wolatibty {5} 17.41% 15.54% 15.54% 16, 19%
Risk-frea Rata 8.70% 7.63% 763% 5.95%
Expected Optan Life (T) Syrs Syrs Syrs Syrs
Dvidend viekd 1.00% 0.47% 0.47% 0.47%
Option Value G6.3 135.3 213 202.61
Exit/Artritian Rate 16.50% LE.50% 16.50% 16,50%
Madified Option Valua 55.4 112.98 177.86 169,18
Note:-

I} The {incamelfexpenses arising from share-based payment transaction recognised in profit of kss as part of empliyes bensfit expensa for the year endad 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020 were Rs,
(54.29 Lakhs) and As. 149,33 Lakha respectively,

li} *0n the date of transition to Ind AS {l.e. 1 Agril 2015), tha Compary had opted for optional exempticn available under Ind A5 101 “First time adopsion” and net recarded any stack aption owtstanding
accounl far the options fully vested (ESOP Scherme 2009) &s at transition dats,

) In resgect b 231,000 {31 March 2020: 30,000) aptiens forfeited during the cwrrent year, amount Aaggregating A 117,14 lakhs (31 March Z020: Fs,24.23 lakhs) has bean trandferred to genaral
rasETVE,

O '
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.

Operating segments

(a) Basis for segmentation

An operaling segment is a companent of the Group that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses,
including revenues and expenses that related to transaction with any of the Group's other compenents, and for which discrete financial information is

available.

The Group is engaged in the business of maintaining and managing clinical reference |

aboratories, to provide testing and diagnostics an human

beings, in the field of both pathology and radiology. As the Group's business activity primarily falis within a single operating segment |.e, pathology
and radielagy services, there are no disclosures required to be provided in terms of Ind AS 108 on 'Segment Reporting',

{b) Beograpical information

The geographical infarmation analyses the Group's revenue and non-current assets by

the Group's country of domicile (l.e. India) and ather

countries. In presenting the geographical information, segment revenue has been presented based on the geographical location of customers and
segment assets which have been presented based on the geographical location of the assets,

(i) Revenues

India {a)

Other countries
Dubai

Kenya

Maldives
Migeria

Sri Lanka
Ethiopia

Others

Total other countries (b))

Total (a+b)

(Revenue excludes other operating income and other income)
(ii) Non - current assets
India

Qutside India
Total

MNon-current assts exclude deferred tax assets, income tax assets, tax paid

Year ended
31 March 2021

Year ended
31 March 2020

{Rupees in Lakhs) (Rupees in Lakhs)

100,019.51 96,267.15
1,546.83 2,396.80
169.17 173.33
128.88 521.67
99,28 171.22

70.94 106.08

48.02 62.09

35.24 322,39
2,098.36 3,753.64
102,117.87 100,020.79
34,232.54 42,945.79
362.79 620,41

—_— 34508533 43,566.20

In protest, goodwlll and investments. Capital advances have bean shawn

In India as the assets against which advances have baen given shall be installed in India though they have been given to parties outside India.

(e} Major customer

The Group does not derive revenue from one custemer which wauld amount to 10 per cent or more of the Group's revenue.

G
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

47A. Disclosure as per Ind AS 115 - Revenue from contracts with customers

i)

i {a)

i (b}

47B.

Particulars

As at
31 March 2021

As at
31 March 2020

{Rupees in Lakhs)

{(Rupees in Lakhs)

|Unbilled revenue 133.88 | 105.53 |
Contract liabilities 1,064.13 924.83
Advances from customers 815,44 753.74
Deferred revenue 06.76 45.82
|Liability towards customer loyalty program 151.93 125.27

The revenue recognized during the current year is the balancing number for transactions with customers after
adjusting opening and closing balances of contract assets and liabilities,

Disaggregation of revenue by Geographical region
Revenue disaggregation by geagrapical region is included in segment information {refer note 47

Disaggregation of revenue by sales channal

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
{(Rupees in Lakhs) (Rupees in Lakhs)
Owned labs 76,303.84 77,485.37
Caollection centre 24,411.24_ 20,925.01
Franchisees 1,402.79 1,610.41
Total 102,117.87 100,020.79

Events after the balance sheet date

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, SRL Limited has ac
DDRC SRL Diagrostics Private Limited (DDRC) - a Joint venture of SRL Di
SRL Limited) for Rs.35,000 Lakhs on April 5, 2021, As a result,

50% to 100%, obtaining contral of DDRC.

guired 50% of the equity shares and voting interest In
agnostics Private Limited {a subsidiary of
the group's equity interest in DDRC increased from
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMNCIAL STATEMENTS

49,

494,

Details of dues to Micro and Small Enterprises as per MSMED Act, 2006

The Ministry of Micra, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an Office Memorandum dated 26 August 2008 which recommends that the Micro
Enterprises and Small Enterprises should mention in their correspondence with its custemers the Entrepreneurs Memaorandum Number as allocated
after filing of the Memorandum. Accardingly, the disclosure in respect of the amounte payable to such enterprises as at the year end has been

made in the finandial statements based on information received and available with the Group,

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 21 March 2020
{Rupees in Lakhs) (Rupees in Lakhs)
The principal amount remaining unpaid as at the end of vear 268.42 134.47
Interest due on above principal and remaining unpaid as at the end of the year 3.67 12.94
The ameount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16, of the Micro Small -
and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 aleng with the amounts of the
payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting
year,
The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment 9.30 5.78
{which have been paid but beyond the appainted day during the year) but without
adding the interest specified under Micro Small and Medium Enterprise Development
Act, 2006,
The amount of interest acerued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting 12.97 18.72

year; and

The amaount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding . =
years, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small

enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section

23 of the Micre Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006

The Group has made detailed assessment of its liquidity pesition and of the recaverability and carrying values of its assets comprising Property,
plant and equipment, Intangible assets, Goodwill, Trade receivables, Inventory and Investments as at the reporting period and has concluded that
thera are ne materal adjustments required In the financial statements, The management has considered the possible effects that may result from
COVID-19 pandemic in preparation of its financial statements. In develaping the assumplions and estimates relating to the uncertainties as at the
Balance Sheet date In relation to the recoverable amounts of these assets, the Group's Management has considered the global econamic conditions
prevailing as at the date of approval of these finandal statements. The actual outcome of these assumptions and estimates may vary in future due
to the impact of the pandemic.

Business combination

During the year, the Company entered into a business purchase agreement to acquire a lab owned by Dr. 5 P Singh located at Patiala for a
purchase consideration of Rs. 145.50 Lakhs,

The following table summarizes the recognised amount of assets acquired:

{ 5

Particulars Fair Value
Trademark 40.50
Labaratary Equipments 7.52
Office Equipments 1.20
Air Conditioners 0.28
Furnitures & Fittings 0.56
Computers and accessories 0.29
Net assets acquired 50.35

Goodwill
Goodwill arising from acquisition has been determined as follows:
{Rupees in Lakhs)

Particulars Amount

Purchase consideration® 145.50
Fair value of net identifiable assets 50.35
Goodwill 95.15

*Purchase consideration includes Rs.105.00 Lakhs for assets purchase and Rs.40.50 Lakhs for trademark (non-compete fees).

Purchase consideration includes deferred consideration of Rs. 75.50 lakhs |s payable over & period of 27 months fram the date of acquisition (i.e. 1
April 2020)

The goodwill is attributable mainly to the synergies expected to be achleved by integrating the lab acquired into the Company's existing diagnostic

business. Considering the expected synergies in operation, it is impracticable to discose revenue / profit or lass for the acquired |ab separately.

Mone of the goodwill recagnised is deductible for income tax purposes. ", \
\9} :
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NO FORMIN AT OF MSOLID, INAMNCIA| EMEN
50. Interestin a joint venture
Share of profit of joint ventures
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
(Rupees in Lakhs) {Rupees in Lakhs)

Share of profit of SRL Diagnostics (Mepal) Private Limitad [refer note 51] 17.65 62.76
Share of profit of DDRC SAL Diagnostics Private Limited [refer note 52] 4,339.31 B609.09

51.

wd

Investment in joint ventures (SRL Diagnostics {Mepal) Private Limited)

SRL Limited {*SAL") entered Inte a Joint Venture agreement with Life Care Services Private Limited Mepal, to carry on the business of operating
pathology labs and disgnostics centers in Mepal and for this purpose, has incorporated SRL Diagnostics (Nepal) Private Limited {"SEL Mepal™) with

50% interest in assets, llabilities, expenses and income. SRL invested Rs, 150 Lakhs in SRL Mapal.

Summarised financial information in respect of the company's joint venture is set oul below. The summarised financial information below
represents amounts shown in the Joint venure's financial statements prepared in accordance with Ind ASs #djusted by the company for equity

accounting purposes.

As at
31 March 2021

As at
31 March 2020

{Rupees in Lakhs)

(Rupees in Lakhs)

Current assets BE7.97 742,57
Mon-current assets 120.60 129.B0
Currant labilities 205.31 303.58
Non-current liabilines 26.49 27.33
Net assots E76.77 54146
The above amounts of assets and llabilities include the following:
Cash and cash equivalents 381.65 517.98
Current financial llabilities {pxcluding trade payables and provisions) 3.64 10.22
Mon-current financial liabilities {excluding trade payables and provisions) 4.49 7.02
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
(Rupees in Lakhs) {Rupees in Lakhs)
Revenue 562,11 819,55
Profit for the year 35.30 125.53
Total comprehensive income for the vear 35.30 12553
Proportion of group awnership interest in foint venture 50% 50%
Share in profit of joint venture 17.65 62.76
Less - Dividends accrued from the joint venture during the year - -
Group's net share of result of joint venture 17.65 62.76
The above profit for the year includes the following:
Depreciation and amartisation 22.75 23.62
Other income 17.88 26.18
Interest expense 0.96 0.87
Income tax expense (including deferred tax assets) 8,73 42,86

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial infarmation to the carrying amount of interest in the joint venture recognised in consolidatad

financial statements;

As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
{Rupees in Lakhs) (Rupees in Lakhs)
Met assets of joint venture 576.77 541,45
Proportion of company's awnership interest in jaint venture 50% 50%
Carrying amount of company's interest in the joint venture 288.38 270.73




SRL LI

52. Investment in joint ventures (DDRC SRL Diagnostics Private Limited)

pome

QNS0

SRL Diagnostics Private Limited {"SRLD") holds 50% interest in DDRC SAL Diagnaostics Private Limited, a jointly controlled entity which is involved in the
business of maintaining and managing clinical reference laboratories, to provide testing and diagnostics services in the field of pathology in the State of

Kerala

Summarised financial infarmation in respect of the joint venture is st

shown in the joint venure's financial statements prepared in aceardance wi

Current assets
Mon-current assets
Goodwill arising on acquisition of joint venture

Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
MNet assets

The above amounts of assets and liabilities include the Tollowing:

Cash and cash eguivalents
Current finandial liabilities {excluding trade payables and provisions)
Nan-current financial liabilities {excluding trade pavables and provisions)

Revenue
Frafit for the year {after considering effect of group accounting policy )

Proportion of company’s ownership interest in joint venture

Share in profit of joint venture
Lessi- Dividends received from the joint venture during the year

Group's net share of profit of joint venture (A)

Share in other comprehensive income of joint venture
(a) Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans of joint ventures

(b) Income tax on remeasurements of the defined benefit plans of joint ventures

Group's share in other eamprehensive Income of joint venture (B)

Group's total share of result of joint venture (A+B)

The above profit for the year includes the following:
Depreciation and amartisation

Qther income

Finance costs

Incame tax expense (Including deferred tax)

As at
31 March 2021

out below. The summarised financigl information below represents ameunts
ith Ind ASs adjusted by the Group for equity accounting purposes,

As at
31 March 2020

(Rupees in Lakhs)

{Rupees in Lakhs)

4,736.14 1,960.20
7.218.02 7.189.17
898.38 B98.38
1,255.53 1.411.38
298.82 1,128 88

2,857.55
199.30
490.61

Year ended
31 March 2021

wd

715.42
177.71
652.68

Year endad
31 March 2020

{Rupees in Lakhs)

(Rupees in Lakhs)

30,174.22 16,036.90
8,678.61 1,218.18
50% 50%
4,339.31 609.08
(2,800.00) :
1,539.31 609,09
8.07 (30.29)
(2.03) 7.62
6.04 {22.67)
1,545,34 586.42
1,182.00 877.74
85.47 22.02
150.92 94,51
2,864.46 431.59

Reconcillation of the above summarised financial information to the carrying amount of interest in the joint venture recognised in consolidated finaneial

statemants;

Net agsets of joint venture
Proportion of company's ownership interest in joint venture
Carrying amaount of company's interest in the jeint venture

Contingent liabilities:

Claims against the Joint venture, not acknowledged as debt (Group's share of liabilities):

Disputed income tax demands

Disputed VAT demands

Payment of bonus as per the payment of bonus (amendment) Act, 2015
Others

As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
({Rupees In Lakhs) {Rupees in Lakhs)
10,598.18 7,507.49
50% 50%
5,299.09 3,753.75
427.05 427.05
1.51 .
15.54 15.54
10.16 15.04
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SRL LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

54,

{a)

(b}

Investigation inltlated by the erstwhile Audit and Risk Management Committee of Fortis Healthcare Limited ("Parent Company” or
“FHL")

Az disclosed in the financial statements for the years ended March 31, 2018, March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2020, during the year ended March 31 2018,
there were reports in the media and enquiries from, inter alia, the stock exchanges received by the Parent Company about certain inter- corporate loans
given by a wholly owned subsidiary of the Parent Company. The erstwhile Audit and Risk Management Committes of the Parent Company decided to
carry out an independent investigation through an external legal firm an this matter. The terms of reference of the investigation, inter alia, comprised: (i)
ICDs amounting to a total of Rupees 49,414 lacs {principal), placed by the Parent Company's wholly-owned subsidiary, FHsL, with three berrowing
companies as on July 1, 2017; (i) the assignment of these ICOs to & third party and the subsequent cancellation thereof as well as evaluation of legal
notice (now a civil suit) received from such third party ; (i) review of intra-group transactions for the period commencing FY 2014-15 and ending on
December 31, 2017; (iv) investments made in certain overseas funds by the overseas subsidiaries of the Parent Company (i.e. Fortis Asia Healthcare Pte.
Ltd, Singapore and Fortis Global Healthcare (Mauritius) Limited) ; (v} certain other transactions involving acquisition of Fortis Healthstaff Limitad (“Fortis
Healthstaff") from an erstwhile promoter group company, and subsequent repayment of loan by said subsidiary to the erstwhile promaoter aroup
cempany. The investigation report of which was submitted to the re-constituted Board of Parent Company in June 2018,

The investigation noted certain significant findings in relation to past transactions cancerning FHL and its subsidiaries with companies whose current andy
or past promoters/ directors were known bto/ connected with the erstwhile promaters of the Parent Company. All such identified transactions wers
provided for by the Parent Campany and its subsidiaries in the financial statements for the year ended March 31 2018.

The investigation was subject to the limitations on the information available te the external legal firm and their qualifications and disclaimars ag described
In their investigation report. [t did not cover all related party transactions during the period under Inwvestigation. It was observed in internal
correspondence within the Parent Company that transactions with cartain other entities have been referred to as related party trensections. However, no
further conclusions could be drawn in this regard

Related party relationships as required under Ind AS 24 - Related Party Disclosures and the Companies Act, 2013 were as identified by the Management
taking nto account the findings and fimitations in the Investigation Report and the information available with the Management. In this regard, in the
absence of specific declarations from the erstwhile directors on their compliance with disclosures of related parties, especially considering the substance
of the relationship rather than the legal farm, the related partios were identified based on the declarations by the erstwhile directors and the information
available through the known sharsholding pattern in the entities up to March 31, 2018. Therefore, the possibility could not have been ruled out that thers
may have been additional related parties whose rafationship may not have been disclosed and, hence, not known to the Management. While such
references could not be fully analyzed during the initial investigation, the nature of these references raised certain CONOBIMS.

In order to overcome the above, the Parent Company's Board of Directors Initiated additional procedures/ enquiries of certain entities in the Fortis Group
that were impacted in respact of the matters investigated bry the external legal firm. Pending the additional preceduresfenguiries ("Additional Procedures/
Enquiries”) and since the investigation was subject to the limitations on the infarmation available to the external begal firm and their quallfications and
disclaimers as described in their investigation report, as disclosed in the audited financial statements for the years ended March 31, 2018, March 31, 2019
&nd March 31, 2020 certain audit qualifications were made in respect of Parent Company and its Subsidiaries {including the company's) financial
statements for those financial years, as the statutory auditors were unable to comment on the nature of those matters, the provisions established
theraof, or any further potential impact on the financial statements, In order to resolve the same, the Board of the Parent Company mandated the
management Lo undertake review of certain areas in relation to historical transactions for the period April 1, 2014 to September 30, 2018 invalving
additional matters by engaging independent experts with specialized forensic skills to assist with the Additisnal Procedures/Enguiries and provide inputs
and expert advice in connection therewith, The independent experts submitted their report which was discussed and considered by the Board of the
Parent Company in Its meeting held on September 16, 2020,

The Board of Company and its subsidiaries noted that the Additional Procedures/Enquiries had not revealed any further instances of improper transactions
which had not been expensed ar provided in earlier vears.

In connection with the potentially improper transactions, the Parent Company has undertaken a detailed review ta assess t's legal rights and has initiated
necessary action,

LR
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(c)

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
= To FART UF THE CONSOLIDAT

Key findings during the investigation by the external legal firm and during the Additional Procedures/Enquiries by independent experts

In July 2017 a Mamorandum of Understanding {Mol) was entered between SRL Limited [SRL or "Company’} and a body corporate {Dignity) for lease of a
office space, which were amended on different dates. The Company had paid Rs. 460 Lakhs towards security deposit and fit-outsy interior decoration to
the body corporate, which was refundable on either expiry of the term of the Mol or its earier termination. In addition, the Company has incurred Rs.
315.20 Lakhs on the said proposed office space as capital expenditure/ advance paid, to other third party vendors. The validity of Moll was extended until
31 March, 2018.

The Mol was not extended furthar and the Company asked the Body Corporate to refund the amounts, due as per the Mol. The party had provided the
Company with two post-dated cheques for Rs. 460 Lakhs which were banked on 13 June, 2018 by the Company, but ware returned from the bank with
the comment "refer to drawer”, AS the amounts were not received, the Company hes served legal notice on 3 July 2018 under Section 138 of the
Megotiable Instrument Act against the body corporate. Complaint under Negatiable Instruments Act, 1881 has been fled against Dignity, its Directors and
authorized signatories” (Dignity officers) before Metropolitan Magistrate Court, Mumbai (*Hon'ble Court"} in August 2018, The matter is currently pending
with Hon'le Court for further procesding. The company has also initiated arbitration procesding against the body corporate for recovery of Rs.460 Lakhs
paid towards security deposit and Rs.304 Lakhs incurred pertaining to the office space. Vide order dated February 20, 2019 Hon'ble Delhi High Court
Bppointed an arbitrator before whom company has filed its claim. Further, the compeny have filed their respective claims before Interim Resalution
Professional (IRP) appointed by NCLT in a matter filed by one of creditors of body corporate. IRP is currently adjudicating the claims of various creditors
of the body corporate including that of the cOmpany,

In view of the facts stated above and the uncertainty in the ultimate recovery of the aforesaid balances, the Company had recorded provisions
aggregating to Rs. 775.20 lakhs in these Consolidated Financial Statements,

SFIO has sought information in respect of this transaction from Parent Company and the same has been duly provided by the Parant Company. Further, a
complaint has been filed by the Parent Company and FHsL with the EOW in November 2020 against [t's ex-promoters and their related entities for eartain
matters including the aforesaid matter, EOW is investigating the matter.

Based on investigation carrled by the external legal firm and the additional procedures/enguiries by independent experts, all Identified/required
adjustments/disclosures have been made in the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company. The Parent Company has also submitted findings of
the Investigation Report of the external legal firm and the additisnal procedures/ enquiries by independent experts to the relevant regulatory authorities.
Further, on certain aspects, the Parent Company and Fortis Hospitals Limited {FHsL} have also filed a complaint with the EOW against the erstwhile
promaters/ erstwhile promoter group companies and EOW is investigating the matter,

Recovery /claim proceedings have also been initiated in the matiers where action was recommended by the legal counsels.

Therefore, with this conclusion, the initial investigation initiated by the erstwhile ARMC, which was subject to the Hmitations on the infarmation available
to the external legal firm and their qualifications and disclaimers has bean addressed through the additional procedures/enguiries by independent experts.
In addition, the reconstituted Board of the Parent Company had initiated specific improvement projects to strengthen the process and control
envirenmént, The projects included revision of autharity levels, both operational and financial and oversight of the Baard, review of Financial Reparting
processes, assessment of secretarial documentation w.r.t compliance with regulatery requirements and systems design & contrel enhancement for which
the assessment work was done and corrective action plans were implemantad,

Accordingly, the Board of the Parent Company has taken Mecessary actions in consultation with the legal counsels in this regard. The investigations in so
far as these issues Involving the erstwhile promotars/ erstwhila promoter group companies is concerned are still pending with the requlatory authorities,
The managament of the Company also belioves that if any action is initiated by regulatory authorities against the Group, the same should not have &
significant material impact on the Group as all items which may have financial iImpact have already been provided for in earlier years, The Group would
fully co-operate with the regulatory suthorities in this regard,

T



SRL LIMITED

55.

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Mattars in relation to Regulatory Authorities

(8} During financial year 2017-18, the Parent Company recelved a communication from the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), stating that an

b}

{e)

mvestigation has been instituted by it in the matter of the Parent Company. In the sald investigation, SEBI requisitioned from the Parent Company cartain
infarmation and documents relating to short berm Investrments of approximately INR 473 Crores given by & wholly owned subsidiary Fortis Hospitals
Limited {"FHsL"} of the Parent Company, which had been reported in media. The Parent Company and its subsidiaries had furnished requisite information
and documents, as requested by SEBL. The investigation, which s complete, has been substituted by Adjudication Proceedings during the vear,
Subsequently, a Show-Cause Motice (SCN) was wssued by SEBI tn vanous entities including the Parent Company, FHsL on November 20, 2020 with
certain allegations, In response, 2 Joint representation/reply was filad by the Parent Company and FHsL en December 28, 2020 praying far quashing of
the SCN on varlous grounds,

In the joint representation/reply, the Parent Company and FHsL have submitted that they were in fact the victims of the wrangdoings of the Erstwhile
Pramoters of the Parent Company (Malvinder Mahan Singh and Shivinder Mohan Singh) and that victims ought not to be punished for the acts and
offences of the wrongdoers. Further, the Parent Company and FHsL have submitted that the Erstwhile Promaoters controlled the affairs of the Parent
Company and FHsL at the time when the acts forming the subject matter of the SCN happened. The Erstwhila Promaters are no longer associated with the
Farent Company and a new promoter (Le. NTK Venture Pra, Ltd.} has assumed contral of the Parent Company with the approval of the Competition
Commission of India and SEBI (which has approved the apen offer process triggered by the change in control). Further, various legal actions have been
initiated against the Erstwhile Promaters and several steps have been taken in order to recover the diverted amounts. As such, any adverse orders
against the Parent Company and FHsL would harm their existing shareholders, employees and creditors.

Oral submissions In response to the SCN were made before the SEBI, Whole Time Member on January 20, 2021, and a written synopsis of the same has
been filed. Order of SEBI against the above SCN s awaited.

Qn April 09, 2021, SEBI issued another Show cause notice to varaus parties including Escorts Heart Institute and Research Centre Limited, a subsidiary
of the Parent Company, Mo such natice has been received from SEBI by Company or its subsidiaries.

Curing year ended March 31, 2018, the Registrar of Companies (ROC) under section 206(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, inter alia, had sought
Infarmation in relation to the Parent Company. All requisite information in this regard has been duly shared by the Parent Company with the ROC.

The Serious Fraud Investigation Office (SFI0) of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, under section 217(1){a] of the Companies Act, 2013, inter alia, initiatad
an investigation and sought information in relation to the Parent Company, its subsidiaries (including the Company), joint ventures and associates. The
Farent Company and the Company has submitted requisite information in this regard with SFI0, as requested from time to time, The outcome of the SFIO
mvestigation cannot be ascertained as of now keeping In view the present stage of investigation,

The Investigetion Report of the external legal firm was submitted by the Parent Company to the SEBI, and SFIO on June 12, 2018. Further, the Parent
Company has filed complaints in the EOW against its ax- promoters and their related entities, A copy of the report of the additianal procedures/ enguiries
done by the independent expert have also been submitted to SEBI and SFID on November 10, 2020.

The Farent Company, it's subsidiaries (including the company) are co-operating with the regulators in relation to the ongeing investigations to enable
therm to make their determination on these matters and to undertake remadial action, as may be required, and te ensure compliance with applicable laws
and regulations, As per the management and in consultation with etarnal legal counsel it is believed that the likelihood of additional impact, if any, Is low
and is not expected to be material,



SRL LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

56. Claims assessed as contingent liability and not provided for, unless otherwise stated :

A parly ("Assignee” or “Plaintiff*) has filed a Clvil Suit before the District Court, Delhi in February 2018 against various group entities {together "the
defendents™) and have, inter alia, claimed implied ownerships of brands "SEL" {"Fortis® and "La-Femme" of the Parent company} In addition ko cartain
financial claims and for passing a decree that consequent to a term sheet dated & December 2017 ("Term sheet®) between the defendants and a third
party, the defendants are liable for claims owed by the Flaintiff to the third Party. In connection with this, the District Court passed an ex-parte order
directing that any transaction underteken by defendants, in favour of any other party, affecting the interest of the Plaintiff shall be subject to orders
passed in the said sult (also refer note 54).

The Parent Company has filed written statement denying all allagations made against it and prayed for dismissal of the Clvil Suit en warious legal and
factual grounds. The Parent Company has in its written statement also stated that it has not signed the alleged Term Sheet with the third Party. The
matter is pending adjudication before District Court, Delhi. This third party has approached Delhi High Court for seeking certain inteérim reliefs against the
Company under the provisions of The Arbitration and Conciliation Act, 1996. This third party had also filed a claim for damages and injunctive reliefs
against the Parent Company before International Chamber of Commerce (ICC). The Parent Company has invited the attention of ICC to the aloresaid
pending litigations before various Courts and non-maintainability of claim raised by said third party. Proceedings before Dalhi High Court have been
withdrawn by Third Party on February 24, 2020. Further, arbitration before ICC has also been withdrawn by third Party on February 23, 2020 and the
same has been closed by ICC on February 28, 2020,

In addition to the above, the Parent Company has also recelved four notices from the Claimant claiming {i) Rs. 1,800 Lakhs as per notices dared May 30,
2018 and June 1, 2018 (i) Rs. 21,582 Lakhs as per notice dated June 4, 2018; and (ill) Rs, 1,962 Lakhs as per notice dated June 4, 2018, All these
notices have been responded to by the Parent Company denying any lishility whatsoever.

Separately, the third party has also alleged rights to invest in the Parent Company. It has also alleged failure on part of the Parent Company to abide by
the aforementioned Term Shoet and has claimed ownership over the brands as well, Subsequently, an application has been filed in the civil sult, seeking
substitution of its name in place of Plaintiff/ Assignes,

Allegablons made by the third party has been duly responded to by the Parent Company denying (i) execution of any binding agreement with the Party
and (li) Uability of any kind whatsoever. During the previous year ended March 31, 2019, the Party also filed an application for being impleaded as party
to the Civil Suit by the Plaintiff/Assignee. The matter is pending adjudication before District Court, Delhi. The Parent Company has also filed an
application for perjury against the third Party and certaln other persons before the Han'bile High Court of Delhi which has issued notice to them.

Cruring the quarter ended Septernber 30, 2020, an application was filed by the Parent Company befare the Hon'ble Supreme Court of India, praying for
permission to It and its subsidiaries for changing their respective names, brands and logos; and for continued usage of the same if the said application
was not disposed of prior to expiry of the term of the Brand License Agreement to allow adequate time for smooth Brand transition without any disruption
b business. Subsequent to the year end, the Brand license Agreement has expired. The Parent Company and the Group are awaiting erder{s) of the
Hon'ble Supreme court.

Based on advice of external legal counsal, the Management believes that the elaims are without legal basis and are not tenable and accordingly no
adjustment is required in these Consolidated Financial Statements with respect to these claims,

For B S R & Co. LLP
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